New Mexico Highlands University
A Place for Individual Excellence

March 22, 2016

Dr. Stephanie Kramer
230 South LaSalle Street, Suite 7-500
Chicago, IL 60604-1411
Dear Dr. Kramer:
Enclosed please find the responses to the various concerns noted by the HLC team who
visited our campus last fall. A team of HU administrators, faculty, and staff members prepared this
response and I certify both its accuracy and comprehensiveness. In our view, the narrative is
responsive to the concerns of the visiting team. I should also note that Highlands is sincerely and
fully committed to retaining our full HLC accreditation. It is important to us, our students, and other
constituents. Moreover, it is our position that accreditation by regional accrediting bodies is more
important than ever. Numerous contemporary dynamics are at work that threaten the high quality
of public higher education the public expects and deserves. In our view, meeting the high standards
of accrediting bodies such as HLC is the best protector and symbol of that quality and for those
reason among others, we are committed to maintaining HLC’s seal of approval. I will do whatever it
takes to make that happen.
Sincerely,

Sam Minner, Ph.D.
President

Las Vegas, New Mexico 87701

Office of the President

Telephone

505-454-3269
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Brief Background:
The Mid-Cycle Review (Standard Pathway) Site Visit occurred September 28, 2015 on the
NMHU main campus in Las Vegas, NM. The Review Team members included Esther Fahm
(Team Chair), Julie Guevara, Ihsuan Li, Luis Montes, and Joseph Rives. Results of the Team’s
assessment and recommendations which were based on the NMHU Assurance Document,
documentation on Federal Compliance, and data gathered during the two-day campus visit are
reflected in the Team’s Final Report of November 24, 2015.
The Site Visit Team has recommended that NMHU be placed “On Notice” and that the
following three focused visits be held:




Embedded Interim Report on Faculty Policies and Procedures (2017-2018)
Focused Visit on mission driven strategic planning and budgeting (2017-2018)
Focused Visit on support services for student learning (2017-2018)

This university Response Report provides documentation and updates to the issues, concerns
and recommendations noted in the Site Visit Team’s Final Report of November, 2015.
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Introduction
In preparing our institutional response to the HLC Site Visit Team’s Final Report and
Recommendations, the NMHU leadership team elected to form a response team that reflects
our commitment to shared governance. We have prepared this written response which reflects
our acknowledgement of the concerns and observations of the Team, our recognition of our
need to work more collaboratively and effectively, and our need to document and communicate
what we do and why we do it. We are pleased to note that we have engaged in critical and candid
discussions and are able to provide clear evidence of several jointly accomplished initiatives.
We formatted our response to address each of the five Core Components, noting the Team’s
assessment and recommendations. This is followed by our response and updates, focusing on
the areas of concern noted by the Team. We conclude with an overview of major actions
completed to date, including restructuring or reorganization to improve responsiveness and
actions that have been (or are scheduled to be) formally approved and ready for
implementation. We also offer several appendices as supportive documentation.

_______________________________________________________________________________

I. Core Components: Team Recommendations
and University Responses
1. Mission
A.
B.
C.
D.

Clear, articulate, and guides institutions operations – MET WITH CONCERNS
Articulated publicly – MET
Relationship between mission and diversity of society – MET
Mission demonstrates commitment to public good - MET

Team Recommendation: Focused Visit on Mission-Driven University Strategic Planning and
Budgeting in Academic Year 2017-18 (Final Report, p. 9). Focused visit should show:
1) evidence of establishing a broadly endorsed and formally approved mission, including
documents that guide the University operations; and 2) evidence of mission-driven, integrated
and transparent strategic planning and budgeting decisions [see Core Component 5.C below].
University Response and Updates:
1) Broadly Endorsed and Formally Approved Mission
The University began the development of a new five-year strategic plan, HU Vision 2020 in
October, 2014. A 23-member Steering Committee developed, proposed, and received formal
approval of a new mission statement and a new strategic plan Framework (Vision, Core Values,
2
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and University Priorities) through a very open and inclusive process. Though the following
section provides more detail on the development of HU Vision 2020, the new university strategic
plan, this section addresses Team’s concerns which are specific to the university mission.
The Site Visit Team noted that the current mission statement (“Education through teaching,
research and service”) did not appear to be broadly endorsed by the university community.
Their assessment was reinforced by the institutional assurance document and through data
collected in the on-site visit. Since the September Site Visit, the Strategic Planning Steering
Committee developed and implemented a survey with proposed language for a new mission
statement that was presented through global email correspondence to faculty, staff, students,
and alumni for ranking, input, revisions, and comments. Building upon the input gathered from
this open process, a new mission statement was generated by the Steering Committee and
formally approved by the Faculty, Staff and Student Senates, by the administration, and by the
Board of Regents (See HU Vision 2020 Timeline, Appendix A). This broadly endorsed new
statement follows:
New Mexico Highlands University is a public comprehensive university serving our local
and global communities. Our mission is to provide opportunities for undergraduate and
graduate students to attain an exceptional education by fostering creativity, critical
thinking and research in the liberal arts, sciences, and professions within a diverse
community.
The new mission statement has been submitted to HLC for approval (application sent February
29, 2016). We will continue to use our current mission statement until formal notification by
HLC on their approval of our new mission statement. Nonetheless, we present this update as
evidence of establishing a broadly endorsed and formally approved mission.
2) Mission-Driven, Integrated and Transparent Strategic Planning and Budgeting Decisions
We have engaged in a university-wide planning process over the course of at least 18
months. The following three sections provide updates on strategic planning and budgeting
actions:
a. Strategic Planning: Development of New Five-Year Plan: HU Vision 2020
b. Next Steps: Unit Planning of Initiatives and Action Plans in Alignment with
Priorities, Vision and Core Values
c. Strategic Planning and Budgeting Decisions: Current and Future Processes
a. Strategic Planning: Development of New Five-Year Plan: HU Vision 2020. As noted in
the Final Report of the HLC Site Visit, the Team was “encouraged that NMHU continues to
review and update its mission, mission documents, and strategic plan for 2020; and the ongoing process demonstrates shared governance.” (p. 8). We recognize that the current mission
3

NMHU Response_Mar 22, 2016

statement (“Education through Teaching, Research, and Service”) was not broadly endorsed, nor
convincingly linked to institutional planning. We also recognize that the primary concern in
meeting Core Component 1.A is the absence of significant actions, documentation, and
implementation of mission-driven planning in the previous 2009-2014 University Strategic
Plan. Given that we cannot undo the past shortcomings with respect to this Core Component,
we can provide an update on the progress which has been made with HU Vision 2020 over the
course of the past 17 months, and hereby report our continued planning activities and updates
since the September, 2015 Site Visit.
The University began the development of a new five-year strategic plan, HU Vision 2020, in
October, 2014, with an initial call for nominees to serve on the Steering Committee. The
Strategic Planning Steering Committee held several planning meetings before hosting a
campus-wide Kick-Off event on January 28, 2015. (See Timeline, Appendix A). A series of focus
groups, community forums, and campus dialogues were held; and solicitation of input through
the website was encouraged. Input from faculty, staff, students, alumni and community
members was sought in an open and inclusive manner throughout the process and a webpage
was created for public notification and updates of the entire process.
In establishing the Guiding Principles for strategic planning process, the following text was
presented to the Strategic Planning Steering Committee at one of the initial meetings:

As the NMHU community prepares to engage in strategic planning, it is imperative that
we consider this as an opportunity to answer some of the more recent questions we have
been raising about identity, priorities, and direction. While institutional leadership may
propose direction, the true power of a comprehensive strategic planning process lies in
the active engagement of its key constituencies. To that end, we must ask ourselves what
Highlands is, could be, and will be within the next five years. We chart our pathway and
build consensus on our mission, vision, core values, and major goals. Building on current
resources and expertise and setting targets reflecting our aspirations, we can determine
the support needed to move us toward our new goals and priorities. Once the university
community has agreed to the major goals and targeted priorities, each unit on campus
will be asked to create a more local strategic plan with initiatives and targets that are
clearly linked to the University Plan 2020. These action plans are what give life to the
Strategic Plan, and it must be a living document. These action plans will need to be
presented, approved, implemented, and evaluated.
Steering Committee working document, 2014.

After formal approvals by the Faculty, Staff and Student Senates, the HU Vision 2020 Strategic
Planning Framework was approved by the Board of Regents on February 26, 2016. This
4
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followed a 16-month planning process, demonstrating both an inclusive process and one that
honors the process of shared governance. The new mission statement was presented
previously (p. 3). The main components of the formally approved HU Vision 2020 Framework
are presented below.
HU Vision Statement
Our vision is to be a premier university transforming lives and communities now and
for generations to come.
HU Core Values
Excellence:
We strive to excel in all that we do. Excellence shapes our choices and actions in
education, research, creative activities and service.
Diversity:
As an Hispanic-Serving Institution (HSI) and an aspiring Native American-Serving NonTribal Institution (NASNTI), we welcome national, international, and indigenous
students, and consider diversity as our strength. We acknowledge and embrace the
cultural values, experiences and multiple identities within our community through
inclusion and fairness.
Accessibility:
We commit to provide opportunity and affordability to all students and professional
advancement for all staff and faculty.
Responsiveness:
We collaboratively and efficiently address internal and external issues in a timely and
respectful manner
HU VISION 2020: Six University Priorities
A. Academic Excellence, Academic Integration & Student Success
We commit to establish and strengthen systems, structures and programs to enhance
students’ holistic well-being and success at all levels of study (including life-long
learning), through the delivery of High-Impact Practices, such as research and creative
opportunities, increased student engagement, and service learning.
B. Strategic Enrollment Management
We will establish and implement a Strategic Enrollment Management Plan that
includes target enrollments, recruitment, and retention strategies for all academic
degree programs and delivery sites (inc. Centers and Online).
5
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C. Vibrant Campus and University Life
We will enhance campus life for students, staff, faculty, alumni and community through
expanded intellectual and recreational programs and services at the main campus and
Centers, with a commitment to safety and inclusion.
D. Community Partnerships
We will develop, expand, and enhance collaborative community partnerships for
mutual benefit in the areas of leadership, community and economic development,
community service, academic enrichment, entertainment, and recreation.
E. Technological Advancement and Innovation
We will use technology strategically to support quality, efficiency, and innovation in
daily operations, student support services, and teaching and learning.
F. Enhanced Communication and Efficiency across the University
We will engage in proactive communication at all levels to provide efficient and
effective services.
b. Next Steps: Unit Planning of Initiatives and Action Plans in Alignment with
Priorities, Vision and Core Values. The Strategic Planning Steering Committee is scheduled to
meet on March 24, 2016, to finalize the Unit Planning template for distribution to the campus
community and to all personnel in management, supervisory or leadership roles to begin
developing unit action plans and initiatives. A draft of this planning form is included in
Appendix B. Instructions and guidelines will call for actions and initiatives to be clearly linked
to one (or more) University Priorities. These activities will also be addressed in the new
Budgeting process.
c. Strategic Planning and Budgeting Decisions: Current and Future Processes. The
following section offers a brief description of the current year’s budgeting process and the
transition to the new HU Vision 2020 strategic plan. Given that the new HU Vision 2020 plan
was approved after the current year’s budging process, we describe how efforts were made to
transition to the new strategic plan and incorporate the budgeting process with strategic
planning.
c1. Current Budget Process.
This section briefly summarizes the current budgeting process which is being modified
to provide a more integrative and transparent budgeting process. The FY17 Budget process was
initiated in mid-December, 2015 with the goal of including input from all of the NMHU
Departments. Well over 100 departments had the opportunity to present their operating and
one-time request budget requests. In preparation for linking the budgeting process to strategic
planning, the Budget Director placed emphasis the need to match requests with the proposed
University Priorities within the new university strategic plan: HU Vision 2020.
6
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The following points reflect the current budget development process:
 The process of collecting budget requests data began with scheduling meetings with
department chairs and directors. Meetings with academic departments sometimes
included the respective dean. During the meetings, those present were asked to tie their
department/unit requests to the Strategic Priorities and Mission.
 The process included providing an updated and current FY16 budget for review. The
budget included position numbers, salaries, benefits, operational expenditures, revenue
budgets, and collections if they were a part of the department financials.
 Attention was placed on individual accounts for FY16 with the report including a
beginning balance, expenditures, encumbrances and available balance.
 Department personnel were given the opportunity to comment on uses and potential
needs within the accounts and to request changes to the accounts and with personnel
that better suited the required needs of the department.
 The departments were also provided the opportunity to make known their
requirements for equipment considered capital outlay, which were noted for
informational purposes and separate from the operational portion of the budget request.
 Departments were identified in three categories, as a flat budget, an increased budget
and a decreased budget.
 Summarized budgets at the program level were sent to the Vice President of Finance and
Administration for review and dissemination to other vice presidents and president.
 Requests for increases were examined, prioritized and if acted upon, shared with the
departments. [Note: Opportunities for departments to appeal and adjust denied
requests may be provided prior to finalizing the budget.]
Related to the current budgeting process, the Vice President of Finance and Administration also
met with Faculty, and Student Senates’ Finance Committees numerous times and the staff as a
whole during the budgeting cycle primarily to seek input on the proposed cuts or increased
revenue (i.e., tuition and fees) strategies, in response to cuts in operating budgets at the state
level.
c2. Budgeting Challenges.
Creating an operating budget for higher education given the volatility of the economic
markets, changes in demographics, external pressures from the public and media to keep
tuition and fees low, decreased funding from state appropriations, and an underlining changing
of public education funding models are among the few variables university planners are having
to face today. The objective of a new open and transparent budgeting process must
acknowledge these challenges, and consequently call for the institution to be more strategic in
aligning the budgeting process with institutional direction and mission. A new budgeting
process is being developed and proposed which will offer constituent groups the opportunity
7
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to provide input throughout the process. Key decision-makers can determine the major needs
and address the University Priorities more effectively through this more open process.
c3. Budget Philosophies






Create a budget process that aligns with HU Vision 2020 Priorities
Adapts to the current financial situation, and
Supports the Board of Regents’ and President’s priorities.
Maintain fiscal stability through state policy makers, laws, and administrative policies.
Balance the needs of students, faculty, staff, community members and the public trust
granted to the university.
c4. Proposed New Budgeting Process and Protocol: Alignment with HU Vision 2020

The proposed new annual budgeting process is intended to seek input from various constituent
groups through individual departmental meetings; to include Faculty, Staff, and Student
Senates financial committees and the newly formed budget and capital planning committee;
and to include additional budget hearings with chairs, directors, deans, vice presidents, the
president and the governing Board of Regents. Specific activities within the proposed new
process and protocol is integrated into the timeline below (See Table 1, p. 9). This process is
being presented to all three Senates for input and refinement in March and April, 2016.
c5. Proposed New Timeline for Budgeting and Planning
In order to allow sufficient feedback for our annual operating budget(s), a new
budgeting timeline is also being proposed. The recommendation is to begin the planning
process shortly after the new fiscal year (see Table 1). NMHU’s budget office will be responsible
for memorializing all request(s), notes and recommendation(s) at each level.
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Table 1. Proposed Timeline and New Budgeting and Planning Process
Time Period

Activities

Mid-August to midSeptember

Academic and administrative units will participate in department level budget
development with assistance from the NMHU budget office. Academic and
administrative units will prepare summaries of all department level outcome
assessments, graduation rates, unit action plans/initiatives, and other external
accreditation data to assess needs for additional (or reduction) of resources.
All academic and administrative units, through their representatives (e.g. chair,
coordinator, etc.) will present their budget requests to their unit supervisor
(e.g. dean or director) in a group forum. This process opens communication and
transparency for requests within units, allowing for internal reallocation, if
needed. Unit supervisors will develop their recommendations based on these
hearings/open forums and prepare summaries of all requests submitted.
Newly reconstituted “Campus Planning and Budgeting Committee meets to
prepare recommendations for short and long-term capital budgeting and
campus-wide improvements.
Deans and unit directors will present their recommendations and rationale to
vice president(s) in respective areas of responsibilities. Vice president(s) will
be responsible for summarizing the requests and making recommendations to
the president and vice president of finance and administration. These requests
must include justifications and align with HU Vision 2020 Priorities and
presidential goals. These requests will be presented to all financial committees
as informational items.
Vice president of finance and administration will present summary of requests
and recommendations to the campus community at the end of the semester
during an annual budget overview presentation.
Vice president of finance and administration will work with the president and
executive team to prioritize these requests and also to determine a source of
funding (i.e., tuition and fees, state appropriations, or other revenues sources).
These requests will be presented to the Board of Regents financial committee
along with fiscal impacts and any new initiatives that must be aligned with the
NMHU strategic plan.
During this timeframe the NM state legislature will meet on either a sixty or
thirty day session. Sixty-day sessions are during the odd years and any subject
is germane for that session. Thirty-day sessions which occur on even numbered
years are limited to creating an annual operating and capital budget and subject
to the “call” from the governor.
Vice president of finance and administration will present an annual operating
budget to the entire board of regents. Per state statute, NMHU is required to
submit a balanced-operating budget by May 1 of the previous fiscal year.
Vice president of finance and administration will submit the final electronic
budget to the NM Higher Education Department for their approval. Also, NMHU
will produce an annual “Operating and Capital Budget Book” which reflects all
requests, presentations, worksheets and any other artifacts to represent what
actions were taken during the budget cycle.
The operating budget will be available upon approval without required changes
from the NM Higher Education Department and the NM Department of Finance
and Administration. Departments are able to submit new fiscal year purchase
orders for goods and services; however, goods and services are not to be
received until the new fiscal year begins on July 1.

Mid-September to
mid-October

Early October to early
November
Mid-October to early
November

November to
December
January to February

January to March

March to Mid-April
End of April to May

May 15 to June 30
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2. Integrity: Ethical and Responsible Conduct
A. Operates with integrity in financial, academic, personnel and auxiliary functions; sets
and follows policies/processes for fair and ethical behavior on the part of the
governing board, administration, faculty and staff. – MET WITH CONCERNS
B. Institution presents itself clearly to constituencies with regard to programs,
requirements, faculty and staff, costs to students, control and accreditation. –MET
C. Governing Board is sufficiently autonomous to make decisions-MET
D. Institution is committed to freedom of expression and pursuit of truth in teaching and
learning – MET
E. Institution’s policies and procedures call for responsible acquisition, discovery and
application of knowledge by its faculty, students and staff.-MET
Team Recommendation: Focused Visit on Visiting and Adjunct Faculty in Academic Year
2017-18. Focused visit should show: 1) evidence of a personnel handbook/manual for visiting
and adjunct faculty approved by the Board of Regents; 2) evidence of the development and
approval processes consistent with shared governance procedures, specifically for the
budgeting process; and 3) evidence of communication, dissemination and implementation of
policies and procedures (Final Report, pp. 19-20).
University Response and Updates:
The Site Visit Team’s primary concern with Core Component 2 pertained to the Visiting and
Adjunct faculties. Our response provides critical information and timeline updates with respect
to: 1) the personnel handbook for Visiting and Adjunct Faculty; 2) shared governance
procedures, particularly for the budget development and approval process; and 3) improved
communication and dissemination of policies and procedures.
1) Personnel Handbook for Visiting/Adjunct Faculty: Development and Formal Approval
a. Brief Background on Development of the “HU Contingent Faculty Handbook”
The Faculty Senate engaged in Initial discussions and drafted text to generate a handbook for
visiting and part-time faculty in 2012. Though this document was never finalized and approved,
it provided a basis for creating this current handbook. The Faculty Senate charged the Faculty
Affairs committee to prepare this handbook, and the committee developed the initial draft.
Input was gathered from multiple sources throughout the process, including academic units
that rely on a significant number of visiting, term and/or adjunct faculties.
b. Brief Description of the “HU Contingent Faculty Handbook” content
The Contingent Faculty Handbook covers all NMHU Faculty who are not tenure-track or tenured.
This includes visiting professors, retained term faculty, term faculty, and per-course faculty, as
defined by the NMHU Faculty Handbook.
10
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The Contingent Faculty Handbook accomplishes several things:
 Gathers in one place important information about teaching at NMHU, including
resources, responsibilities, syllabus policies, book-ordering and grading procedures,
leave and personnel policies, and links to other important information.
 Establishes both an orientation procedure and annual professional development
procedures for all contingent faculty.
 Establishes an evaluation procedure for all contingent faculty.
A perusal of the Table of Contents of the Contingent Faculty Handbook (see Appendix C)
demonstrates the range and scope of topics included. The full manual is available upon request.
Below is an excerpt from the Introduction of the Contingent Faculty Handbook:
Introduction
Welcome to New Mexico Highlands University! Your department chair or discipline coordinator
is here to answer any questions or concerns that you may have relative to the university and
your responsibilities as a faculty member. Feel free to consult with your tenured/tenure-track
colleagues, Dean, and department staff as well.
This handbook is intended as a reference guide to identify program resources and expectations,
and to outline responsibilities assumed by all Highlands visiting, retained term, term, and percourse faculty and certain common procedures to be followed. There are also departmentspecific policies and procedures not included in this handbook. Faculty should check with their
department chair or discipline coordinators to ensure they are familiar with all departmental
policies.
While this Handbook has tried to gather the most relevant information, please refer to the
NMHU Faculty Handbook and the NMHU Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual for
additional details and policies. These can be found on the NMHU Faculty Resources Page,
located under “Faculty” at the main nmhu.edu website.
Except where noted, policies in this Handbook apply equally to visiting, term, retained term,
and per-course faculty.
Although contingent faculty are not covered under the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA),
many of the policies in this manual are in alignment with that document. All faculty are held to
the same standards of excellence as their tenured and tenure-track peers.
Excerpt: Contingent Faculty Handbook, 2016-18, p. 3)
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c. Approval Process and Timeline for Contingency Faculty Handbook
Below includes a list of the actions taken to approve the Contingent Faculty Handbook
consistent with NMHU governance practices. The Faculty Senate uses the following approval
process for all policy level documents:
1. Drafting of the initial Handbook by the appropriate Faculty Senate subcommittee.
[Completed December 9, 2015.]
2. Dissemination of the draft Handbook to the campus community by the Faculty Senate.
[Completed December 2015-March 2016.]
3. Approval of the Handbook by the Faculty Senate. [Completed March 9, 2016.]
4. Approval of the Handbook by the General Faculty. [Scheduled for March 23, 2016.]
5. Review and approval of the Handbook by the Administration. [Scheduled by April 1,
2016.]
6. Approval of the Handbook by Board of Regents. [Scheduled for April 8, 2016.]
The following governance actions were completed in the development and approval process
for the new Contingent Faculty Handbook:
1. Drafting of the initial Handbook by the appropriate Faculty Senate subcommittee:
a. On December 9, 2015, the Chair of the Faculty Affairs Committee submitted a
draft of the Contingent Faculty Handbook to the Faculty Senate. Initial
discussions and draft text to generate a handbook had begun in 2012, and served
as a basis for creating this current handbook.
2. Dissemination of the draft Handbook to the campus community by the Faculty Senate:
To receive feedback from the campus community, the Chair of the Faculty Senate,
Brandon Kempner, took the following steps:
a. On December 12, 2015, the Handbook was sent as broadly as possible to the
campus community (tenured and tenure-track faculty, retained-term, term,
visiting, and per-course faculty, as well as administrators). More than 25
responses to the Handbook were received from all constituencies. This feedback
was used by the Faculty Senate Executive Committee to revise the handbook.
b. On January 20, 2016, Dr. Kempner sent a reminder calling for Contingent Faculty
Handbook feedback to the campus community.
c. On February 2, 2016, Dr. Kempner announced an Open Forum on the Contingent
Faculty Handbook for all non-tenure track faculty on February 8, 2016.
d. On February 8, 2016, Dr. Kempner held an Open Forum on the Contingent Faculty
Handbook for all non-tenure track faculty. The Forum was also accessible to
Faculty at the NMHU Centers. Feedback from this forum was integrated into the
Handbook by the Faculty Senate Executive Committee.
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3. Approval of the Handbook by the Faculty Senate: To allow the Faculty Senate adequate
time to review and approve the Contingent Faculty Handbook, the Handbook was placed
on the Faculty Senate Agenda for the following meetings:
a. January 27, 2016: Discussion of the Handbook, with changes integrated into the
Handbook by the Faculty Senate Executive Committee.
b. February 10, 2016: Discussion of the Handbook, with changes integrated into the
Handbook by the Faculty Senate Executive Committee.
c. February 24, 2016: Discussion of the Handbook, with changes integrated into the
Handbook by the Faculty Senate Executive Committee.
d. March 9, 2016: Discussion and approval of the Handbook by unanimous Faculty
Senate vote.
4. Approval of the Handbook by the General Faculty.
a. On February 26, 2016, Dr. Kempner sent the draft of the Contingent Faculty
Handbook to all Faculty for feedback in anticipation of the March 23, 2016
General Faculty meeting.
b. On March 9, 2016, after the Contingent Faculty Handbook was approved by the
Faculty Senate, Dr. Kempner placed a vote of the Contingent Faculty Handbook
on the March 23, 2016 General Faculty Meeting agenda.
5. Review and approval of the Handbook by the Administration. The Contingent Faculty
Handbook was sent to various administrators for review on the following dates:
a. On February 21, 2016: The Contingent Faculty Handbook was sent to HR (Donna
Castro, head of HR) and Finance (Max Baca, Interim Vice-President of Finance)
for review. Review and suggestions were provided on March 2, 2016, and March
9, 2016, and integrated into the Handbook by the Faculty Senate Executive
Committee.
b. On February 21, 2016: The Contingent Faculty Handbook was sent to the NMHU
Center Directors, academic Deans, and the Director of Educational Outreach
Services (who also supports online instructors) for review. Feedback was
integrated into the Handbook by the Faculty Senate Executive Committee.
c. For the February 24, 2016: Faculty Senate Meeting, the Contingent Faculty
Handbook was sent to Dr. Teresita Aguilar, Provost/VPAA, who is an ex-officio
member of the Faculty Senate. On March 2, 2016, Dr. Aguilar provided extensive
feedback. The Feedback was integrated into the Handbook by the Faculty Senate
Executive Committee on March 7, 2016.
d. On March 10, 2016, after the Handbook was approved by the Faculty Senate, it
was sent to the upper administration (President Sam Minner, VPAA/Provost
Teresita Aguilar, and Interim Vice President of Finance Max Baca) for final
approval.
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The following actions are scheduled to be completed by the end of the Spring 2016 semester:
1. Approval of the Handbook by the NMHU General Faculty:
a. Scheduled for presentation on March 23, 2016 General Faculty Meeting.
2. Approval of the Handbook by the Administration:
a. To be determined. Will be completed when legal counsel completes their review
of the document and the Faculty Senate receives official endorsement from
President Minner, Provost/VPAA Aguilar, and Interim Vice-President of Finance
Max Baca.
3. Approval of the Handbook by Board of Regents
a. Scheduled for presentation on April 8, 2016 Board of Regents meeting.
2) Shared Governance in Budget Development and Approval Process
a. Proposed New Budgeting Process and Protocol: Alignment with HU Vision 2020
As stated in the previous section, under Core Component 1 (pp. 6-9), a new budgeting process
is being proposed which is designed to be open, transparent and integrative. The process, by
design, seeks input from various constituent groups through individual departmental meetings
and includes the Faculty, Staff, and Student Senates financial committees and the newly formed
budget and capital planning committee; and includes additional budget hearings with chairs,
directors, deans, vice presidents, the president and the governing Board of Regents. Specific
activities within the proposed new process and protocol is integrated into the timeline
presented earlier in this document (See Table 1, p. 9).
In order to allow sufficient feedback for the annual (and potentially multi-year) operating
budget(s), a new budgeting timeline is also being proposed. The recommendation is to begin
the planning process shortly after the new fiscal year (see Table 1). NMHU’s budget office will
be responsible for memorializing all request(s), notes and recommendation(s) at each level.
This new budgeting process is being presented to all three Senates for input and refinement in
March and April, 2016.
3) Communication, Dissemination and Implementation of Policies and Procedures
A. Contingent Faculty Handbook Dissemination Plan


The Contingent Faculty Handbook will be e-mailed to all contingent faculty at the time
their contract is issued. This will place an up-to-date manual in everyone’s hands before
every semester begins. To achieve this, the retained term, term, and per-course
contracts were modified to include e-mail addresses. Since the VPAA/Provost’s Office
issues contracts, this office will be responsible for e-mailing the handbook when the
contract is issued.
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The Contingent Faculty Handbook will be added to three University webpages, including
the Office of the Provost & VPAA page; the Faculty Senates “Faculty Resources” page
(http://www.nmhu.edu/faculty/faculty-resources/) and the Center for Teaching
Excellence (CTE) Resources web page (http://cte.nmhu.edu/page/). The Chair of the
Faculty Senate will be responsible for creating and maintaining the links to the Faculty
Resources page and the CTE page.
At the beginning of each Fall term, all new Contingent faculties will be required to
participate in new faculty orientation. The Chair (or designee) of the Faculty Senate gwill
ive a presentation and overview of the Handbook and answer questions.
Copies of the Contingent Faculty Handbook will be distributed via e-mail to all key
supervisory personnel (Deans, Department Chairs, HR) by the Office of the Provost.
Training sessions for contingent faculty supervisors will also be provided during
Professional Development Week and on an as-needed basis.

B. Improved Communication and Dissemination Plans for All University Policies
B1. In September 2015, the Faculty Senate created the “Faculty Resources” web page,
located at http://www.nmhu.edu/faculty/faculty-resources/. Curated by the Secretary of the
Faculty Senate, the Senate can rapidly upload any relevant policy document. The page has
quickly become a hub of policies, including the following information, handbooks, and policies:
Handbooks & Policies










Collective Bargaining Agreement
Distance Education Manual
Faculty Handbook
Inclement Weather Policy
Information Technology Policy
Personnel Policies & Procedures
Research Handbook
Student Academic Integrity Policy
Student Handbook

Since this webpage remains under the control of the Faculty Senate, the uploading and updating
of documents can be done immediately after the Senate takes action.
B2. The NMHU-HLC Work Group met with the Director of University Relations on March
9, 2016 to discuss other webpages on which approved policies and procedures are to be posted
and made more accessible to all university constituencies. It was determined that all official
Handbooks should be added to the Provost’s webpage and that new webpages or links should
be provided for Student Affairs and Human Resources. In addition, we have implemented the
use of Sharepoint when developing and drafting policy documents.
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3. Teaching and Learning: Quality, Resources and Support
A. Degree programs are appropriate to higher education – MET
B. Demonstrates intellectual inquiry and acquisition, application and integration of broad
learning and skills in educational programs – MET
C. Institution has the faculty and staff needed for effective, high-quality programs and
student services – MET WITH CONCERNS
D. Institution provides support for student learning and effective teaching -MET WITH
CONCERNS
E. Institution fulfills the claims it makes for an enriched educational environment – MET
Team Recommendation: That the Focused Visit (noted in Core Component 2) on Visiting and
Adjunct Faculty should also: 1A) demonstrate evidence of formal approval of an institutional
process and policy for the evaluation of visiting and adjunct faculty, including part-time and fulltime faculty; 2A) coherent plan for orientation and professional development of visiting and
adjunct faculty, along with evidence of implementation of the plan.
The Team further recommends a Focused Visit on Support Services for Student Learning and
Effective Teaching at NMHU Centers, and Assessment of Co-Curricular Learning Experiences in
Academic Year 2017-18. The Support Services Focused Visit should demonstrate the following
for NMHU Centers: 1) Adequate support for student learning and effective teaching; 2) adequate
budget allocations for effective operations, teaching, and learning; 3) adequate physical facilities
for teaching and learning; and 4) evidence of attention to student concerns.
Also, the Team recommends that the Focus Visit address concerns regarding assessment of cocurricular learning experiences and programs at both the main campus and at the HU Centers
(Site Visit Team Final Report, p. 36).
University Response and Updates:
In response to the Site Visit Team concerns with Core Component 3, we offer the following
additional information and updates on actions that have been taken since the September visit.
Specifically, we address concerns related to: 1) Evaluation plan for Visiting and Adjunct Faculty;
2) Orientation Plan for Visiting and Adjunct Faculty; and 3) Support Services at HU Centers. Our
response regarding assessment of co-curricular programs or experiences on the Main
Campus/HU Centers is addressed in the next section: Core Component 4 (see pp. 28, 32 and
Appendix G).
1) Actions to Address Concerns on Evaluation of Visiting and Adjunct Faculty
The new Contingent Faculty Handbook contains a comprehensive annual evaluation procedure
for all contingent faculty. The processes are separate: full time faculty who have the expectation
of being hired the next year (retained-term faculty) are evaluated in a fashion similar and on a
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similar timeline to their tenure-track and tenured peers; per course faculty are evaluated each
semester. The process is described in the Handbook (see excerpt):
Evaluation OF RETAINED TERM FACULTY
The Faculty and the University accept the position of the AAUP that "Faculty members should
have a primary, though not exclusive, role in evaluating an individual faculty member's
performance" (AAUP "Statement on Teaching Evaluation," 2001). The faculty plays a primary
role in evaluation by reviewing their colleagues' materials, conducting classroom observations,
and developing evaluation reports.
All visiting and retained term faculty shall participate in annual evaluation, following the
guidelines and timeline established for Bargaining Unit Faculty in the Collective Bargaining
Agreement (CBA) for tenure-track and tenured faculty. The process for the evaluation of term
and per-course faculty is contained in Appendix A below.
When evaluating visiting and retained term faculty, special attention should be paid to the
duties as described in the contract. A copy of the evaluee’s contract should be included with the
other evaluation material, provided by the evaluee.
REAPPOINTMENT OF RETAINED TERM FACULTY
The reappointment process for Retained Term Faculty will follow the same timeline and
procedures as outlined in Article 23 of the CBA.
For Retained Term Faculty, the faculty must be given notice if the University determines NOT
to re-hire the employee during the subsequent academic year in accordance with the same
schedule as would apply to Tenure Track contracts.
Term and per-course faculty are evaluated on a semester by semester basis, including
classroom observations in their first semester and then recurring observations of every four
semesters afterward. The process is described fully in the Contingent Faculty Handbook:
OBSERVATION and Evaluation of TERM and PER-Course FACULTY
Term and per-course faculty members undergo evaluation every semester, and continued
employment is contingent upon good performance. Every new term or per-course faculty
member will be observed in the classroom during his or her first semester’s employment. After
their first semester, Term and Per-course faculty employed continuously will undergo a
classroom observation—under the terms outlined below—every two years (four semesters).
The chair, dean, and/or the tenured/tenure-track faculty will make a classroom or equivalent
observation (such as observing a field supervision, asynchronous online class, etc.). The
observations should be a minimum of at least 30 minutes.
Excerpt: Contingent Faculty Handbook, 2016-18 (p. 19-20)
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Observations should be conducted during the first ten weeks of a semester. The faculty member
being observed must have at least 24 hours’ notice before an observation by a member of the
unit. The observer will prepare a written observation report—either using the standard
observation form included in this manual or writing a letter detailing observations—within one
week of the observation.
The department chair or dean should schedule a post-observation conference (including the
term or per-course faculty member (and the observing faculty member, if different from the
chair or dean) within two weeks of the observation. The term or per-course faculty member
should receive a written report of the observation and the post-observation conference for
signature before it is sent to the Provost’s office and placed in his or her personnel file. The
signature indicates only that he or she has seen the report. The faculty member may place a
response to the observation report
After each semester’s per-course employment, the dean or chair supervising the term or percourse faculty member will complete a summary evaluation form. The evaluator should consult
the specific duties listed in the evaluee’s contract, the evaluee’s student evaluations and the
record of in-class observation, if any (IT services will arrange for access). The result of the
evaluation will determine whether or not the term or per-course will be eligible for
reappointment, and for what courses.
If Departments and/or Schools are required by their accrediting bodies to have more
elaborated evaluation procedures, they may design their own evaluation process. This process
must be approved by the Faculty Affairs committee and shared with the employee at the time
of hire.
Excerpt: Contingent Faculty Handbook, 2016-18, (p. 20)

The evaluation worksheet for term and per-course faculty is included as Appendix D.
Since these evaluations are explicitly tied to rehiring contingent faculty, Department Chairs,
Deans, and the VPAA/Provost’s Office will be responsible for making sure these are completed.
2. Orientation and Professional Development Plan for Visiting and Adjunct Faculty
The Director of the Center for Teaching Excellence, working closely with the appropriate
Faculty Senate committees, the CTE Advisory Board, the Associate VPAA, and the Educational
Outreach Services director, has created an Orientation and Professional Development process
for all Contingent Faculty (see Contingent Faculty Handbook, p. 6). The information is excerpted
below:
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NEW FACULTY ORIENTATION
All contingent faculty must complete new faculty orientation before they begin teaching. The
exact dates of orientation will be specified in your contract. There will be both in-person and
online options available.
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT WEEK
All contingent faculty are required to take part in pre-semester professional development
activities. For Visiting and Retained Term Faculty, this means participating in Professional
Development Week the week before the Fall semester begins and in Professional Development
activities the two days before Spring Semester begins or as specified in your contract.
For Term and Per-course Faculty, this means participating in pre-semester Professional
Development as specified in your contract.
All per-course, term, and retained term faculty are welcome and encouraged to participate in
other professional development opportunities throughout the year. These include workshops
held throughout the semester by the Center for Teaching Excellence (located in the Victoria
Sanchez TEC building). Faculty at the centers can participate in many of these via remote access.
CENTER FOR TEACHING EXCELLENCE
The Center for Teaching Excellence provides year-round professional development
opportunities and many other resources for faculty. The Center Director is also available for
one on one consultations. Please see the Center for Teaching Excellence website at
http://cte.nmhu.edu/.
Excerpt: Contingent Faculty Handbook, 2016-18, (p. 6)

By requiring these activities in the contract, NMHU ensures that these will happen. Specific
planning for these activities is being handled by the Director of the Center for Teaching
Excellence, with input from a Faculty Senate ad-hoc committee. Professional Development
Week (held the week before each new academic year) has been successfully held for years, and
contingent faculty have been invited to participate. The process of planning for the Fall 2016
orientation has already begun, and a preliminary list of activities for contingent faculty is
included in Appendix E.
In addition, ongoing Professional Development activities and programs for contingent faculty
will also be offered throughout the academic year by the CTE, through programs offered on the
main campus, through online webinars, and on-site at the HU Centers. The founding director
of the CTE, Dr. Diana Marrs, began her appointment in Fall, 2015, and has engaged in a
comprehensive needs assessment and interest inventory in order to design and implement
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specialized faculty development programs (see Appendix F). She has also offered professional
development activities to prepare faculty for design and delivery of High-Impact Practices
(HIPs) and online teaching. Dr. Marrs has also begun to record PD sessions for future use.
3. Support for Students and Faculties at HU Centers:
Four specific areas of concern for support provided to HU Center students and faculty were
presented by the Site Visit Team with respect to Core Component 3. These four identified areas
include: A) Adequate support for student learning and effective teaching; B) Adequate Budget
Allocations; C) Adequate Physical Facilities; and D) Evidence of Attention to Student Concerns.
Our response to each of these concerns is addressed with either additional data, clarification of
previously reported information, or updates of actions that have been taken to address the
Team’s stated concerns.
A) Adequate support for student learning and effective teaching
A.1. Student Support.
NMHU supports students on our main campus and at our centers in a variety of ways.
The Dean of Students, in collaboration with staff in Student Affairs, works to maintain up-todate information that our students may access through the nmhu.edu website. Under our
“Current Students” tab, a link to “Student Services” displays a listing of all campus-wide support.
These listings include basic academic information like the academic calendar, final examination
schedule, and contact information for a variety of services, as well as links to services that
students may access online.
HU-CARES provides non-academic support to students through academic advocacy,
connection with community resources, and provides education and awareness workshops on
topics related to sexual assault, bystander intervention, and suicide. An online platform, Not
Anymore, is in place to educate students about services and policies and is available to all
students. There is also a staff member at HU-CARES dedicated to serving the centers.
The Office of Accessibility Services works with all NMHU students, across our campuses.
This office works to provide academic accommodations, advises faculty and staff, and advocates
on issues related to student disabilities. The Office of Accessibility Services provides these
services for students who qualify under the American with Disabilities Act.
Our online services include access to our Writing Center, Career Services, Library,
Registration, Financial Aid, and the Business Office. Career Services, for example, televises
workshops and trainings to the centers and has a web page that provides tips and videos to
students. The menu of academic and general support services available to students located at
each of the HU Centers is shown in Table 2.
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Table 2. Support Services Provided to Center Students
Online/Virtual Services from
Main Campus: General Support

Registration/Registrar’s Off.
Business Office
Financial Aid/Scholarships
Career Services
Degree Audit access
Online orientation (web/D2l)
Online Helpdesk
Veterans Support Services

Farmington

YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES

Rio Rancho

YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES

Albuquerque

YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES

Santa Fe:
HEC

YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES

Online/Virtual Services from
Main Campus: Academic Support

Writing Center Support
Library Resources
**Online Tutoring (24/7 services)
HU-CARES

YES
YES
YES
YES
(Elluminate) (Elluminate) (Elluminate) (Elluminate)
YES (Iliad)
YES (Iliad)
YES (Iliad)
YES (Iliad)
TBA
TBA
TBA
TBA
YES
YES
YES
YES

On-Site Support Services:

New student Orientation
Workshops/training sessions
Academic Advisors: Staff
Academic Advisors: Faculty
Writing Assistance
Student Peer Support Groups
Counseling Services
On-site Library/Resource Rm
Computer Lab
On-site Tutoring Services

YES
YES
YES
Via SJC
NO
Via SJC^^
Via SJC
Via SJC
Via SJC

YES
YES
YES
By Appt
NO
NO
NO
YES
YES
NO

YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
NO
YES
YES
YES

YES
NO
YES
By Appt
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO

**New service available Spring, 2016
^^San Juan College, Farmington

Office of Academic Support (OAS). The OAS is housed on the main campus and offers a
variety of services, including services to support student learning and effective
teaching/advising for our centers. Retention initiatives through this department include: Early
Alert, Early Attendance, and midterm alerts. Participation in these alerts allows instructors to
flag students that may not be doing well or have poor attendance so that advisors may work
with them to get students back on track.
Library Support. The NMHU Library website offers off campus students a variety of
services. Faculty and students have access to eReserves, interlibrary loans service, the LIBROS
online catalog, more than 30 online databases, and other web-based resources. Via the Library
Online Helpdesk, Blackboard Collaborate link, the Library provides online research assistance.
During the fall 2015 semester, several off-campus students accessed this on-demand service.
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The Rio Rancho and Albuquerque Centers also maintain library staff at their center libraries to
provide support access to both print and electronic resources for faculty and staff.
Center Webpages. In response to feedback from center students in the fall of 2015, we
are currently working with our University Relations department to install quick links to centerspecific services on our center web pages. Each center at NMHU has a web page that links to
nmhu.edu. By displaying the student services available at each center, we are hoping for greater
accessibility and ease of location for the information for our students. These center web pages
currently contain information about the center, programs offered and location information.

New Student Orientations. Early each semester, the Santa Fe, Rio Rancho, and
Albuquerque centers offer new student orientations to help students navigate the NMHU
website and access our various services. In addition, tours of the center, introduction to center
staff and faculty, and other services are provided. The Albuquerque center will be offering a
transfer orientation workshop at the end of March 2016 to target CNM students interested in
pursuing a BSW degree.
Academic Advising. In addition to providing online support for students through the
NMHU website, we support students in a variety of ways. All centers have academic advisors,
for example, to aid students in core advisement and to help connect them to NMHU faculty for
advisement in their majors. Additionally, center staff are available to meet with students about
their academic needs and connect them with the appropriate NMHU services. Tenured, tenure
track, and contingent faculty provide advisement at each center and help monitor student
progress towards degree completion.
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Online Tutoring support. NetTutor, an on-line tutorial system and service designed to
provide on-line tutorial assistance to students by qualified personnel has recently been
acquired by NMHU to serve all students. In addition to the following covered subjects, other
content areas can be offered, should demand exist: English Composition, Liberal Arts Math,
Algebra, Geometry, Trigonometry, Calculus, Statistics, Astronomy, Chemistry, Biology, Physics,
Information Technology, Economics, Finance, Accounting, Paralegal Studies, Criminal Justice,
and more. Tutors hold office hours, attend supervisory meetings, hold individual tutoring
appointments, and lead small group tutoring sessions. Tutoring professionals are usually either
full-time employees of LSI, or alternate between tutor assignments and full-time teaching or
graduate-level studies. The target implementation date for NetTutor is April, 2016.
Technology Support. Online and ITV courses taught at our NMHU Centers are supported
by Educational Outreach Services (EOS). EOS monitors and crews all ITV courses and provides
technical support when needed. Additionally, EOS provides video conferencing to help host
department meetings, workshops and graduate student oral defenses, so that faculty and
students at the centers are connected to their departments across our campuses. In addition,
EOS monitors all online courses during synchronous sessions and provides needed technical
support for faculty and students. In the fall 2016, 245 faculty and 594 students accessed this
online help desk (duplicate head counts). Other services provided by EOS include student
orientation and training, and faculty training and support.
A. 2. Faculty Support.
Faculty at our centers include tenured, tenure track, and contingent faculty. All faculty
are hired by their academic unit (chairs and deans), which are housed on the main campus.
Full-time tenured/tenure track and term faculty at the centers may participate in department
meetings and other college or school events through our online and distance technology
services (currently ITV and Zoom). A significant number of full-time faculty in Teacher
Education, Business and Social Work are currently located in the Rio Rancho and Albuquerque
centers. The Associate Dean of Social Work is assigned to our Albuquerque Center, as it is also
a very large center for our BSW and MSW degree programs.
Online Training-for Online Instruction. Prior to teaching using our ITV or online services,
all faculty are required to go through training with Educational Outreach Services (EOS). In
addition, all faculty have access to instructional design assistance (3 FTE) to help design,
develop, and review online courses. Our Center for Teaching Excellence (CTE) opened in 2015
and provides additional training and professional development for all faculty, across our
various sites. At the beginning of each fall semester, tenured and tenure track faculty
participate in a professional development week. EOS and CTE provide workshops for faculty to
attend in a variety of topics, including use of our instructional technologies and discussions of
best practices. Beginning in the fall 2016, all contingent faculties will be required to participate
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in professional development week activities which are scheduled the week before classes begin.
On-site and online professional development activities will also be provided by the CTE
throughout the academic year.
Table 3. Support Services Provided to Faculty Teaching at Centers
Online/Virtual Services from Main
Campus: General Support

Center for Teaching Excellence: PD
Instructional Design support
Technical Support/Online Helpdesk
Library Resources
Virtual Office Hours support

Farmington

Rio Rancho

Albuquerque

YES
YES
YES
YES
NO

YES
YES
YES
YES
YES

YES
YES
YES
YES
NO

Santa Fe

YES
YES
YES
YES
NO

B) Adequate Budget Allocations
Center Directors are responsible for oversight of the operating budgets of their centers which
include their on-site staff and general operating expenses. However, academic departments
oversee the hiring and support of their faculty who teach and advise students at the Centers;
therefore, instructional budgets are not overseen by Center Directors.
New Mexico Highlands University operates four in-state Centers which are located in
Farmington, Santa Fe, Rio Rancho and Albuquerque. The rental costs for the four centers is just
over $600,000 per year and include costs for utilities and maintenance (see Table 4), except for
the Rio Rancho Center.
Table 4. Annual Rental Costs per Center
Farmington
Rio Rancho**
Albuquerque
$45,123
$382,385
$187,906

Santa Fe: HEC
$86,890

Total
$602,304

**Building owned by the NMHU Foundation; annual rental fee to Foundation

The landlord for the Farmington Center is San Juan College, and the space is more limited in
comparison to other HU Centers. The primary program offerings in Farmington are in the fields
of Education, Business, and Social Work. The Rio Rancho Center is owned by the NMHU
Foundation, and leased to and maintained by the University. The primary feeder institution for
its undergraduate programs is Central New Mexico (CNM) Community College. The Santa Fe
Center is located in the Higher Education Center (HEC), which is owned and operated by Santa
Fe Community College. The HEC offers undergraduate degree completion programs and a
limited number of graduate programs from several partner institutions. The Albuquerque
Center solely houses Social Work programs, and is overseen by the Associate Dean who also
serves as Center Director. The landlord for the Albuquerque Center is a private entity.
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C) Adequate Physical Facilities for Teaching and Learning
A recent analysis of the current and projected space needs of each of Centers was initiated.
The data on Table 5 illustrates the current space availability and type of use for these spaces.
Table 5. Space Availability and Purpose per Center
Space Information
Overall Sq Ftg
# of Classrooms
# of Faculty Offices
# of Staff Offices
# Computer Labs
# of Conference Rms
# of Large Meeting Rooms
Library/Resource Room
Student Lounge
Other

Farmington
3,166.5
7
7
7
1
-0-0NO

Rio Rancho
23,118
15
22
11
2
-0-0YES

Albuquerque
12,123
6
10
4
2
1
-0YES

Santa Fe: HEC
3,575
5
-02
-0-0-0NO

NO

YES

YES

NO

N/A

YES

N/A

YES

NMHU regularly discusses the enrollment potential at our centers, as well as our main campus.
By utilizing both traditional and nontraditional means of course delivery, we can maximize our
space requirements. For example, at our Santa Fe Center, discussions with faculty, staff,
students, and business leaders, have led to the formation of cohorts for teacher education,
criminal justice, computer science, curriculum and instruction, and our educational leadership
programs. The formation of these cohorts has allowed the center to optimize the delivery of
our courses, despite our space limitations, and accommodate the needs of working adults
seeking to further their education. The most significant and constraining space issue at the HEC
is for private office spaces for faculty.
At our largest center, Rio Rancho, we have more than adequate space, depending on the time of
day. In a report from the Center Director in March 2016, it was noted that the center is at 25%
capacity during the day (Monday through Friday), and 75% capacity during the evenings
(Monday through Friday). On weekends, the center is at 10% capacity. Currently, the Center
Director is working with department chairs and deans to expand academic offerings during our
low use times.
The Albuquerque Center Director reports classroom space available Fridays, Saturdays, and
Sundays. Although this center is near capacity on Monday through Thursday (9 a.m. to 9 p.m.),
we recognize that growth potential is available on weekends. If another BSW cohort is added
to this center, one proposal is to offer courses during the vacant Friday through Sunday time
period. This would help to maximize the space utilization at the center. Currently, NMHU rents
space from nearby agencies/organizations to accommodate large meetings for new student
orientations, field orientations, and special events.
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As mentioned previously, the Center with the greatest space constraints is Farmington. The
largest classrooms can only accommodate up to 12 students, with most classrooms limited to
less than 10. There is interest and demand for offering courses with 20 or more students. We
will continue to investigate options for growth at this Center.
D) Addressing Center Student Concerns
The reporting process for student concerns from our center students depends on the type of
concern (see Figure 1). Grade appeals and academic petitions are handled through procedures
described in our catalogs and NMHU Student Handbook, by a process approved by the
Academic Affairs Committee of the Faculty Senate. All petitions are available online and can
be signed and transmitted via email for appropriate signatures.

Academic Concerns
• Faculty
• Program Chair
• Dean
• Provost/AVPAA

Misconduct
Concerns
• Center Director
• Dean of Students
• Student Behavior
Intervention and
Support Team
(SBIST)

Scheduling
Concerns
• Center Director
• Program Chair
• Dean
• Provost/AVPAA

Figure 1. Concerns are addressed at the lowest level and progress to the next level if the student’s
needs are not met.

Concerns addressed through the Dean of Students Office include student grievances or other
issues related to non-academic misconduct. All students can access the student grievance form
electronically through the Dean of Students website or through each of the center websites. The
forms are then submitted to the Dean of Students Office. The Dean of Students follows the
process outlined in the Student Handbook. This includes meeting with students at the centers.
All concerns received in the Dean of Students’ Office, whether in person, on-line or via
telephone, are logged and tracked; and the logs include the resolution. Student concerns that
are not in violation of the Student Code of Conduct are referred to the Student Behavior
Intervention and Support Team (SBIST) through which comprehensive support is provided to
students, including those at our centers. SBIST support includes case management, academic
support, referral to mental/behavioral health services, housing accommodations, and other
related and necessary services.
The Office of Academic Affairs handles all academic petitions, including grade appeals,
retroactive adds, drops, and withdrawals once the necessary signatures have been obtained.
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Petitions are date-stamped and SharePoint is used to log and track decisions and all paperwork
including referring petitions that are sent to the faculty subcommittees for review. An electronic
log is accessible by all personnel within Academic Affairs. This ensures accurate tracking of and
addressing student concerns at the main and center campuses and will also allow us to identify
common complaints or issues and address these concerns by modifying existing policies.
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4. Teaching and Learning: Evaluation and Improvement
A. Demonstrates responsibility for the quality of its educational programs – MET
B. Demonstrates a commitment to educational achievement and improvement through
ongoing assessment of student learning – MET WITH CONCERNS
C. Demonstrates a commitment to education improvement through ongoing attention to
retention, persistence, and completion rates in its degree and certification programs –
MET WITH CONCERNS
Team Recommendation: Focused Visit on Support Services for Student Learning and Effective
Teaching at NMHU Centers, and Assessment of Co-Curricular Learning Experiences at the Centers
and Main Campus in Academic Year 2017-18. This Focused Visit should demonstrate full
implementation of assessment of student learning processes and attentiveness to institutional
progress in Outcomes Assessments. The Focused Visit should also demonstrate evidence of an
officially approved institutional assessment plan for informal co-curricular
programs/experiences that claim to contribute to Student Learning Outcomes, including: 1)
clearly stated goals and SLOs for co-curricular programs or experiences; 2) evidence-based
methodology for assessment of student’s achievement of the Learning Outcomes; 3) regular
assessment schedule, and 4) report template that includes “closing the loop,” and dissemination
of assessment information to key stakeholders. Incorporation of co-curricular outcomes
assessment in an officially approved Assessment Handbook. (Final Report, pp. 50-51).
Further, evidence demonstrating the incorporation of assessment planning and implementation
processes into institutional budgeting is needed. The Team noted that HU is at risk of not meeting
Core Component 4.C. (Final Report, p. 54).
The Focused Visit should address: evidence of a formally approved 2015-2019 plan for
improving Retention, Persistence and Completion—along with evidence of an integrated
planning process and endorsement/approval by internal groups and BOR. The plan should
demonstrate: 1) realistic goals; 2) robust evaluation plan; 3) institutional coordination and
oversight; 4) adequate resource allocation; and 5) progress in implementation of the plan. (Final
Report, p. 55).
University Response and Updates:
In this section, we offer our responses to the Site Visit Team’s primary concerns with Core
Component 4, which focus on: 1) evidence of a formally approved Assessment Plan to include
both Academic and Co-Curricular Learning assessment; 2) evidence of the implementation of
institutional assessment processes of student learning, both within degree programs and in cocurricular experiences in non-academic programs offered by the institution to enrich or
enhance student learning; 3) evidence of integrating assessment planning with overall
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university planning, including the budgeting process; and 4) evidence of a formal Retention,
Persistence and Completion Plan. Each of these concerns is addressed with updates,
preliminary evidence and proposed timelines for action items related to the Team’s concerns.
1) Formally approved Assessment Plan to include both Academic and Co-Curricular Student
Learning Outcomes assessment
a. Outcomes Assessment Handbook. The Outcomes Assessment Committee of the Faculty
Senate had drafted an Outcomes Assessment Handbook reflecting the new assessment program.
That Handbook was approved by the Faculty Senate in April of 2015. However, a more broadly
revised Handbook that includes co-curricular assessment will need additional review and input
from deans and other administrators, as well as re-approval of the expanded Handbook by the
Faculty Senate and the Staff Senate, as it now impacts several programs administered by NMHU
staff.
b. Inclusion of Co-Curricular Assessments. This preliminary Outcomes Assessment
Handbook did not include the assessment of co-curricular programs and experiences, and will
require input from other personnel who oversee many of these programs as that aspect of
assessment is incorporated into the revised Assessment Handbook.
Many major co-curricular programs at NMHU already have assessment of student
learning outcomes embedded in them, although these are not unified under the current
Assessment Handbook. These include Internships, Practicum and Field Experiences, the
Achieving in Research, Math and Science Program (ARMAS), the First Year Experience Program,
and the Writing Center. Examples of these assessments are included in Appendix G. As noted in
that appendix, Highlands already has a great deal of data related to student learning outcomes
and internships, practicums, and field experiences collected as part of Academic Program
Outcome Assessment. These data can be extracted from those reports and presented as part of
a larger co-curricular assessment report. As indicated above, NMHU is already engaged in
incorporating these assessments more formally into the Assessment Handbook. Specifics of this
timeline for incorporation are including in Appendix G.
c. Timeline and Committee. Discussions have been held with representatives who
oversee many of the current offices providing co-curricular programming and the Director of
Institutional Research office, Dr. Jean Hill. She also oversees multiple assessment programs
including NSSE, alumni surveys and other institution-wide student assessments. It is likely that
the current Outcomes Assessment Committee will need to be expanded to include staff involved
in the design and delivery of co-curricular programs and experiences to address SLOs in nonacademic programs. The revised Outcomes Assessment Handbook, inclusive of Co-curricular
assessments will be drafted Spring, 2016 and prepared for formal approval in AY 2016-17.
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2) Evidence of the Implementation of Institutional Assessment Processes
a. Background information. In 2008 Highlands joined the HLC Academy for the Assessment
of Student Learning. Our project for the Academy was to develop a Banner-based, universitywide assessment system that would allow for program-specific, university-wide, and specialty
assessments of student outcomes. The project began with the identification of four traits that
we expect to be present in every Highlands graduate. Those traits, as identified by surveys and
discussions with the faculty, staff and students of NMHU, are:
 Mastery of Content Knowledge and Skills
 Effective Communication Skills
 Critical and Reflective Thinking Skills
 Use of Technology
The four traits were adopted in 2009 and incorporated into course syllabi and program
assessment. We initiated a Banner-based system for uploading assessment data and providing
assessment reports back to the units.
b. Peer Reviews of Program Assessments. Highlands University faculty assesses the
quality of each program’s outcomes assessment efforts through a process of peer review
workshops. The last workshop was held during Faculty Development Week of the fall 2015
semester. To assess the progress made since that time peer review workshops were held in the
beginning of March, 2016. The reciprocal review process enables participants to review
Highlands’ degree programs and receive critical peer reviews of their own programs.
The Academic Outcomes Assessment Peer Review Rubric is a revision of the peer review form
used in previous workshops. Eleven programs were reviewed by a team of two faculty members
and the results of these reviews were used to assess the inter-rater reliability of the rubric. Of
168 observations, 96 were rated identically by both faculty members, for an inter-rater
reliability index of 57%. “Good” inter-rater reliability is considered to be 80% or above and this
is our goal. This level was only attained on three of the elements of the rubric. To address this
issue, the Outcomes Assessment Committee is currently reviewing the rubric to identify areas
for clarification and to develop user instructions.
The percent of programs in each School and College whose average peer review rankings
identified their outcomes assessment reports as Fully Developed (3), Partially Developed (2),
No Evidence (1), or the program was missing a report (0). Results of the peer reviews are shown
in Fig. 2 below, and are based upon the peer reviews of 27 programs in the College of Arts &
Sciences, 17 programs in the School of Business, Media and Technology, 8 programs in the
School of Education, and 2 programs in the School of Social Work.
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Assessment Quality by School/College
Arts & Sciences

Fully Developed

Business

Partially Developed
No Evidence

Education
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0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Fig. 2. Results of Peer Reviews Program Assessment Quality. March, 2016 Workshop.

A minority of the programs (11%) were given an average rating of Fully Developed by their
peers. Another 42% were rated as Partially Developed. Average ratings were highest for the
elements “Learning outcomes are clearly linked to the program’s mission statement” and
“Learning outcomes are clear and measurable” (total average rating 2.4 out of 3). Average
ratings were lowest for the elements addressing the use and reporting of results. Complete
results for the programs assessed are available upon request.
c. Assessment of Center Students. The NMHU assessment system allows for the
aggregation and disaggregation of assessment data for any group of students, including
students at the Centers. There are 14 programs that are offered at one or more of the NMHU
Centers, eight undergraduate and six graduate. Of those only one program does not currently
collect data from their students at the Centers. That program will begin collecting that data for
the 2015-2016 academic year.
Overall there were 1,172 assessment data points collected in 2014-2015 from students in
academic programs offered on the main campus and at the Centers. The numbers are about
equally distributed between the main campus and the Centers. Altogether, 86.9% of the
assessment outcomes from the main campus showed that students were meeting the criterion
for success for the student learning outcome, compared to 91.6% of students at the Centers.
Table 6. Comparison of Main Campus and Center Students on Assessment Outcome Results
# Students
Met
Criterion
778

Main Campus
# of Students
Total #
Did Not Meet
Students
Criterion
Assessed
117
895

% Met
Criterion
86.9%

# Students
Met
Criterion
803

Centers
# of Student
Total #
Did Not Meet Students
Criterion
Assessed
75
877

% Met
Criterion
91.6%
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These aggregate results, while an encouraging indication of the performance of students at the
Centers, give no information concerning specific academic programs, or how those programs
might improve. To address this problem, academic programs offered at the Centers will be
provided with specific analyses of main campus versus Center student learning outcomes to be
included in their outcomes assessment reports. Data from 2014-2015 has been provided to
these programs this spring, and programs will be required to report these data in future
reports.
d. Dissemination of Outcomes Assessment Results. Currently, complete outcomes
assessment reports for each academic program are published on the Institutional Research
section of the NMHU website here: http://www.nmhu.edu/institutional-research/academicprogram-outcomes-assessment/
That location is not ideal, since members of the public would not think to look there for this
information. We plan to change that system so that the reports are posted on the website of
each academic program, with the heading “Assessment of Student Learning Outcomes”. The
web pages in institutional research will be maintained, but will only provide links to the
reports on the pages of the academic programs.
e. Implementation of Program Improvements
1. The academic programs are currently reviewing the peer reviews completed this spring.
Several programs will be modifying their plans this spring in response to that feedback.
They will be:
 Re-writing their student learning outcomes to ensure that they are clearly linked to
the mission of the program and describe outcomes specific to their program
 Ensuring means of assessment are direct measures of their student learning
outcomes and are clearly explained
 Ensuring assessments include all students in their programs, including those online,
at the Centers, and at different stages in the program
 Ensuring practica, internships and field experience programs are assessed
 Ensuring criteria for success on each means of assessment are clearly explained
2. As per the timeline in the NMHU Outcomes Assessment Handbook, all assessment data is
to be entered into the system at the end of the academic year.
3. Reports will be generated by the Office of Institutional Effectiveness and Research and
sent to the program faculty at the end of the fall semester. These reports will include
analysis of Center and online students and practicum/internship/field experience
programs where appropriate.
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4. Program faculty will interpret results and provide a complete report to the OIER.
5. A peer review workshop will be held during Faculty Development Week before the
beginning of the fall semester. Data collected during that workshop will be used to
develop an update of this report, which will be reviewed by the Outcomes Assessment
Committee of the Faculty Senate and the Office of Academic Affairs. The report will also
be posted on the website.
f) Evidence of Preliminary Assessments within Co-Curricular Programs or Experiences. The
requirement to assess and document the attainment of student learning outcomes through cocurricular activities is a new expectation from the HLC, first included in the Criteria for
Accreditation that became effective in January of 2013. As such, Highlands’ efforts in this area
are still in a formative stage, as are those of our sister institutions.
This section will address assessments of several programs that are already being conducted
(See Appendix G) and how those will be improved and incorporated into a comprehensive
evaluation of student learning outcomes in co-curricular activities. Those programs are:









Internships, Practicums and Field Experiences [not embedded in degree programs]
Achieving in Research, Math and Science (ARMAS)
First Year Experience Program
The Writing Center
Career Services
Student Clubs and Organizations
Campus workshops
Research conferences and events

All of these programs have been asked to develop assessment plans that mirror the plans
already required from the academic programs (as described in the NMHU Outcomes Assessment
Handbook). The University will need to identify the entities responsible for reviewing those
plans and reports. We will attempt to use our Banner-based assessment system to identify
assessment measure related to these experiences, when possible.
3) Incorporate Assessment Planning with Institutional Budgeting
The protocol for academic program reviews has been modified over the last two years. One key
element was adding program SLOs to the protocol. Also, the new HU Vision 2020 strategic
planning Priority A (Academic Excellence, Academic Integration & Student Success) will require
specific and measurable actions and initiatives that will contribute to student success. As an
institutional priority, this will also require budgetary alignment and consideration. An example
of this is the institutional commitment to supporting Learning Communities as a means to
contribute to student engagement and success. In alignment with Priority A, the LC program
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requires the appropriate resources allocations to succeed. The evaluation of both curricular and
co-curricular experiences of LC students is embedded in their Outcomes Assessment Plan.
4) Formal Plan for Retention, Persistence and Completion
a. Preliminary planning by an ad-hoc committee. In 2006 an ad-hoc retention committee
was formed and developed the 2007-2008 Draft Retention Plan. However, this plan was never
formally adopted and endorsed by the university. The oversight and coordination of
implementing actions recommended by the draft plan did not occur. Although the Plan was
never officially endorsed, several of the recommendations were acted upon or implemented by
many student service offices and units. The work of this committee offered direction, yet
needed a more formal organizational structure and administrative oversight to be
implemented. The focus of this initial (2007-08) plan was on lower division students and their
transition to the university. Though there were some faculty on this committee, the proposed
plan was not broad in scope, and pertained primarily to student support services. The HLC Site
Visit Team is correct in noting that this initial plan was not formally endorsed nor tracked.
b. Recent Planning by new Retention Committee. The next effort to address retention
emerged much more recently. An ad-hoc Retention Committee began meeting again on
December 16, 2014, to develop a broad-based NMHU Draft Retention Plan. The committee
consisted of 19 members that represented faculty students and staff from different units across
campus. Since December 2014, the ad hoc committee met 11 times and developed the Retention
Plan. The 2014 plan was much broader in scope, and its first recommendation was for the
president to identify an administrative office charged with overseeing enrollment management.
Two additional critical recommendations were to formally institute a Retention Committee and
to develop a formal university-wide Retention Plan.
Table 7. History of committee and plan development and approval process 2007-2015
Dates
Purpose
Action
Address retention issues

Ad hoc retention committee created the
2007-08 retention plan. Never formally
presented, nor approved by the university
Re-establishment of informal ad-hoc
committee

Analysis and preliminary Plan
development

Eleven meetings to discuss and revise draft
plan
2014 Draft Retention plan included in HLC
Assurance Report

2014 Draft Retention Plan
presented to administration

Submitted to NMHU Executive Team
(Minner, Aguilar, Baca, Trujillo)

AY 2007-2008
Dec. 2014
Dec. 2014 – Aug.
2015

Aug 25, 2015
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c. Institutional Coordination and Oversight, A new administrative position was created to
provide the necessary leadership and development of a comprehensive Strategic Enrollment
Management Plan. This position, created by our new President (Sam Minner), is the Vice
President for Strategic Enrollment Management. Dr. Edward Martinez is serving in this
leadership role and will provide coordination and oversight. Additionally, NMHU will contract
with Ruffalo Noel Levitz (RNL) during spring 2016 to assist VP Martinez in designing and refining
recruitment and retention strategies.
d. Retention Advisory Committee. In January 2016, the oversight of campus-wide
retention was assigned to the VPSEM and Associate VP for Academic Affairs to manage and
implement retention efforts. The Retention Advisory Board was then formalized by the VP for
Strategic Enrollment Management.
The Retention Advisory Council consists of nineteen (19) members from the following:
 One (1) member from each of the following Offices: Financial Aid; Recruitment;
Registrars; Academic Support; Campus Life; Academic Enrichment; Institutional
Effectiveness and Research; Achieving in Research, Math, Arts and Science; Business
Office; Research and Sponsored Projects; and Athletics
 One (1) member from the NMHU Centers
 Five (5) faculty members recommended by Faculty Senate, two (2) from the College of
Arts and Sciences and one (1) from each of the School of Business, School of Social Work,
and School of Education
 One (1) student member recommended by Student Senate
e. Student Success and Retention Plan Development and Dissemination Plan. The Advisory
Council met on February 5 and 16 to discuss and revise the “Increasing Student Success and
Academic Excellence at New Mexico Highlands University: A Retention Plan 2016-2020.”
The final Draft Student Success and Retention Plan was sent to the Faculty, Staff and Student Senates
on March 9, 2016, for review and comments.







Comments provided by faculty, students and staff by March 21, 2016, will be reviewed
by the Retention Advisory Board for incorporation and revision of the draft plan.
The Advisory Council will meet the week of April 3, 2016, to discuss comments and
suggestions provided and determine which will be integrated into the plan.
Plan revisions based on comments from the campus personnel and students will be
completed by the week of April 18.
Once the plan is revised, it will be sent to the Faculty, Staff, and Student Senates for
endorsement followed by Administration endorsement.
Following campus-wide endorsement, responsible sub-committees will be identified to
begin the implementation of the actions identified in the plan.
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Table 8. Timeline for development and endorsement of the Increasing Student Success and Academic
Excellence at New Mexico Highlands University: A Retention Plan 2016-2020 document.

Purpose
Oversee Retention Issues

Revision of Plan

Action

Dates

Oversight assigned to VPSEM and
AVPAA

Jan 29, 2016

Retention Advisory Council
established by VPSEM

Feb 5, 2016

New plan title: Increasing Student
Success and Academic Excellence at
New Mexico Highlands University: A
Retention Plan 2016-2020

Feb 16 – March 9,
2016

Refined goals, objectives and actions.
Added measureable outcomes and
resource needs.
Review period by campuswide constituents

Submitted to Faculty, Staff, and
Students for comments

Refine plan based on
faculty, student and staff
comments

Plan Revisions by Retention Advisory
Council

Mar 9 – Mar 21,
2016
Mar 21 – 31, 2016

Plan Endorsement

Approval by Faculty, Staff, and
Student Senate

April , 2016

Plan Implementation

Sub-committee assignments to
implement actions identified in the
plan.

May, 2016 – May,
2020

Plan Revision

Assessment Review

August, 2016 –
May 2020

f. Establishing Realistic Goals
To manage enrollments and increase fiscal stability President Minner set a student enrollment
goal of 4500 students by 2019. Additionally, he set the goal of increasing our retention 2%
higher than our peer institutions. Table 9 below provides historical and average retention rates
of our peer institutions.
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Table 9. Retention and 4 & 6 year graduation rates for NMHU peer institutions in 2013. Average was
calculated for peer institutions only.
Institution Name

State

2013
Cohort
Size

2013 Cohort
2nd yr
retention %

2006
Cohort
Size

2006 4-yr
Grad Rate
%

2006 6-yr
Grad Rate
%

New Mexico Highlands
University
Adams State University
Alcorn State University
Colorado State UniversityPueblo
East Central University
Eastern New Mexico
University-Main Campus
Northeastern State Univ
Sul Ross State University
The Lincoln University
The University of Texas of
the Permian Basin
University of West
Alabama
Western New Mexico Univ
Average

NM

349

48

396

5

16

CO
MS
CO

434
545
765

58
76
63

382
540
628

8
15
18

25
31
34

OK
NM

596
654

66
59

605
612

15
11

33
29

OK
TX
PA
TX

852
301
331
314

61
51
76
69

1052
190
654
315

10
12
21
17

30
24
37
37

AL

355

65

289

16

27

NM

208

55
64

167

10
14

16
29

As part of this initiative, NMHU is committed to professional development to ensure student
engagement and learning, as well as student support in order to increase retention, persistence
and graduation of all NMHU students. The overarching goal of the student retention efforts at
NMHU are to develop a well-structured system of support services for student success that
enhances student’s social and academic integration to ensure that students perform well
academically, thrive socially, and cope effectively with nonacademic responsibilities.
NMHU will increase enrollments and graduation rates through retention of freshmen and
transfer students from historical, relatively flat, (see table 10) measures at an average increase
of about 2% per year for each student cohort to achieve the following by 2020:









Increase first-time freshman fall-to-spring retention rates to 85%
Increase first-time freshman second year retention rates to 55%
Increase first-time freshman four-year graduation rates to 12%
Increase first-time freshman six-year graduation rates to 25%
Increase first-time total transfer student four-year graduation rates to 50%
Increase first-time total transfer student six-year graduation rates to 60%
Increase AA transfer student four-year graduation rate to 80%
Increase AA transfer student six-year graduation rate to 90%
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Table 10. Historical Retention and Graduation Rates and HU2020 Retention Goal

Transfers

Freshmen

Historical

Goals

07

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15

2020

2nd term

69

72

71

78

72

74

75

78

74

85

2nd yr.

53

45

45

48

51

55

47

48

52

55

4-yr

6

3

6

5

9

8

6

10

8

12

6-yr

25

21

19

19

21

16

18

17

18

25

All 4-yr

43

51

50

48

41

42

40

41

39

50

All 6-yr

51

48

49

57

55

55

51

49

48

60

AA 4-yr

71

72

65

68

67

65

69

69

67

80

AA 6-yr

80

74

81

75

75

73

76

75

72

90

* Percentage rates in the year reported
g. Implementation Strategies. We have developed a comprehensive and student-centered
strategy to support students throughout their college experience and increase the number of
students completing their degree. Additionally, NMHU will contract with Ruffalo Noel Levitz
(RNL) during spring 2016 to provide recruitment and retention services. Therefore, it is important to
recognize that this document is a dynamic working plan that will be revised based on the
recommendations from RNL and as new data are gained and strategies are implemented. The
following objectives are designed to meet the above stated goals as written in the Increasing
Student Success and Academic Excellence at New Mexico Highlands University: A Retention Plan
2016-2020
The following objectives are designed to meet these goals.
1. Reorganization and realignment of administrative offices to more effectively address
challenges in enrollment management, academic affairs, and the Dean of Students
reporting lines, clarify roles and responsibilities for retention efforts, and enhance
effective communication and collaboration across the institution
2. Increase opportunities for student academic integration so that students feel connected
to their field of study and their academic work
3. Increase opportunities for students to achieve social integration–students develop a
sense of community and belonging as they form friendships and become part of campus
life
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4. Support students with coursework needs, especially in gateway courses that are
roadblocks for success
5. Develop and evaluate interventions to support student learning by putting in place
actions to ensure students are progressing both academically and socially
6. Collect student data related to needs and barriers
7. Continually monitor, assess, and implement improvements based on data collected to
retain and graduate our students
h. Evaluation Plan. The research literature on retention and persistence of students
clearly indicates that the actions and the climate of the university community (faculty, staff,
administration, and surrounding environment) are key to increasing students’ sense of
belonging and thus retaining students to graduation. At NMHU there have been numerous
initiatives and efforts over the years to improve retention and graduation rates. However,
NMHU student retention and graduation rates are still at or below the national rates. The VP
for Enrollment Management will oversee the comprehensive coordinated efforts outlined
below to ensure that students perform well academically, thrive socially, and cope effectively
with nonacademic responsibilities.
Enabling Objectives Timeline, Responsible Party, and Evaluation Method
Each of the above objectives will be evaluated and accomplished by 2020. Strategies and targets
include:
1. Reorganization and realignment of administrative offices to more effectively address
challenges in enrollment management, academic affairs, and the Dean of Students
reporting lines, clarify roles and responsibilities for retention efforts, and enhance
effective communication and collaboration across the institution
a. Vice-President for Strategic Enrollment Management Dr. Edward Martinez hired
to coordinate, synchronize, and implement recruitment and enrollment
initiatives (January, 2016).
b. Consulting firm hired to assist VP Martinez in assessing and quantitatively
evaluating recruitment and retention initiatives leading data driven decisions in
the future (March, 2016).
c. Associate Vice-President for Academic Affairs position restructured into 2.5
positions including Graduate Dean (0.5), Director of Grants and Contracts (1.0),
and the AVPAA (1.0). Interim AVPAA Dr. Carol Linder responsible for overseeing
and coordinating professional development offered through the CTE, Academic
Enrichment including Learning Communities and Honors, and ARMAS (January,
2016).
2. Increase opportunities for student academic integration so students feel connected to
their field of study and their academic work
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Strategies:
a. Implement and evaluate an evidence-based First-Year Experience Learning
Communities Program
a. 100% first time freshmen participation
b. 80% first time freshmen pass LC with C or greater
c. 80% first time freshmen in LC are retained to next term
d. 80% LC faculty teach LC again
b. Fully utilize Banner and Degree Works to increase communication between advisors
and students
a. 100% of faculty upload and update office hours on Banner
c. Development of four-year degree plan road maps for each major and load it into
Degree Works
a. 95% of majors will have road map complete and uploaded into Degree Works
d. All faculty and staff advisors adhere to same advising policies and procedures
a. Create the Student Advisory Manual and have it available in the faculty
resources page
e. Coordinate and plan university wide course offerings that optimize access to all
students
a. Utilize CollegeNet Master Calendar and scheduling software
i. 100% of courses will be scheduled using CollegeNet
f. Increase communication between students and advisors by documenting advising
sessions in Degree Works
a. 95% of faculty, student advisors, and students document advising sessions in
Degree Works
g. Require faculty advisor to approve student’s change of major
a. 100% of faculty will approve student’s change of major prior to the change
h. Faculty and staff will participate in professional development training in the use of
technology
a. 90% of faculty will participate in technology training
3. Increase opportunities for students to achieve social integration–students develop a
sense of community and belonging as they form friendships and become part of campus
life
a. Administer student surveys to determine student satisfaction with Housing, Meal
Plans, Campus Life activities
b. Develop strategies to increase student satisfaction based on survey data
i. 80% of students are satisfied with Housing, Meal Options, Campus Life
4. Support students with coursework needs, especially in gateway courses that are
roadblocks for success
a. Require full faculty participation in Early Alert and Attendance Alert
i. 95% of faculty participate in Early Alert and Attendance Alert
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b. Increase number of 8-week and intercession course offerings to increase access
to courses for all students
5. Develop and evaluate interventions to support student learning by putting in place
actions to ensure students are progressing both academically and socially
a. Provide online tutoring support services to non-traditional and NMHU Center
students
i. Launch NetTutor online tutoring services and advertise it by March 2016
b. Increase number of 8-week and intercession course offerings to increase access
to courses for all students
c. Launch the services provided to faculty for professional development at the
Center for Teaching Excellence
6. Collect student data related to needs and barriers
a. Use technology (Banner, Degree Works, Desire2Learn) to their full potential to
better collect data and communicate with students
i. 100% of students receive duplicate email to personal and school address
ii. 100% of students will receive prompt to update their profile on Banner
7. Continually monitor, assess, and implement improvements based on data collected to
retain and graduate our students
a. Yearly collection and evaluation data to develop strategies for activities and
interventions for students based on educational experience (first time freshmen,
transfer, graduate, international) and student body diversity (Hispanic, African
American, Native American, International, Caucasian)
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Table 11. Progress in Implementation of the Planned Strategies [Recent retention efforts and
initiatives]
20152016












20142015














20092014









Freshman Experience Program (FEP) team attended Washington Center’s National Summer
Institute on Communities in July
Center for Teaching Excellence (CTE) Founding Director Dr. Diana Marrs hired in August
CTE established in TEC building to support engaging, structured opportunities for faculty
and staff members to continually develop their teaching and job skills and provide specific
support for faculty teaching learning communities
FEP implemented fall 2015 with 17 themed Learning Communities
Freshman Forum redesigned using principles from On Course
Peer mentors and academic advisors assigned to each learning community and offered cocurricular activities throughout the semester to assist in transition to college
NMHU student transportation services initiated by Office of Campus Life
NMHU Emergency Food/Basic Needs Pantry initiated
Highlands’ financial incentive program created to encourage timely degree completion
starting with the class of 2019. Each incoming freshman student that completes his or her
degree in four years or less will be awarded $1,000 upon graduation.
Casey Applegate-Aguilar hired as Academic Enrichment Coordinator (August)
Provost Aguilar launched tradition of Fall Convocation (Fall 2014) for the Class of 2018
All freshmen enrolled in revised freshman forum geared at standardizing expectations and
using common syllabus and assigning peer mentors out of Academic Support to each class
Mandate to all programs to develop degree completion road maps for freshman and transfer
students in light of new 120 credit hour requirement
On Course faculty development in student centered learning offered to all faculty interested
in learning communities (one-day workshop in January, three-day workshop in May)
Comprehensive FEP developed and fully adopted by Academic Affairs Committee
Revision of scholarship program to allow students the ability to retain a portion of their
scholarship through appeal
Mandate to all programs to develop degree completion road maps for freshman and transfer
students in light of new 120 credit hour requirement
On Course faculty development in student centered learning offered to all faculty interested
in learning communities (one-day workshop in January, three-day workshop in May)
Comprehensive FEP developed and fully adopted by Academic Affairs Committee
Revision of scholarship program to allow students the ability to retain a portion of their
scholarship through appeal
Board of Regents approves decrease of credits from 128 to 120 and 51 upper division credit
hours to 45 to complete degree (March, 2014)
Early Attendance system implemented and continually revised
Degree Works software adopted (2011-2012) to improve the provision and coordination of
advising services and the development of individualized degree plans for all students.
Viles and Crimmin Residence Hall opened providing 276 beds within 89 apartment-style
suites geared towards incoming freshman students, a major step in providing qualityhousing options for students who live on campus
Implementation of tracking student athletes in Banner to provide increased information
Steps toward the elimination of pre-college level courses in English and math and
replacement with more effective intervention
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5. Resources, Planning, and Institutional Effectiveness
A. Resource base supports the current educational programs and its plans for
maintaining and strengthening their quality in the future – MET WITH CONCERNS
B. Institution’s governance and administrative structures promote effective leadership
and support collaborative processes that enable the institution to fulfill its mission –
MET
C. Institution engages in systematic and integrated planning – MET WITH CONCERNS
D. Institution works systematically to improve its performance – MET
Team Recommendation: Focused Visit on Mission-Driven University Strategic Planning and
Budgeting in Academic Year 2017-18. [See Core Component 1]. With ongoing 15-year history
of fiscal concerns, HU is at risk of non-compliance with Core Component 5.C. The Focused Visit
should address: 1) accomplishments, plans and results in increasing and stabilizing the
Condition of Financial Index (CFI), primary reserves ratio and university reserves; 2) new
institutional capital planning strategies demonstrating progress in keeping projects on-time,
within scope and in-budget; 3) evidence of mission-driven, integrated and transparent strategic
planning and budgeting decisions. (Final Report, p. 60, 65)
University Response and Updates:
A. Fiscal Concerns: Increasing and Stabilizing the CFI, Reserves Ratio and University Reserves
NMHU’s governing board, executive team and campus community are all becoming aware of
the current fiscal situation. President Minner and Mr. Baca gave a state of financial affairs
report to the campus community (Dec 10, 2015). This presentation yielded several critical
results:
 Departments/units recognized the need to improve our enrollments and retention
numbers because of the inherent risk of NMHU’s reliance on declining state
appropriations. Legislators have to grapple with the continued challenges to balance
state budgets, and do so by reducing funding to institutions of postsecondary and higher
education.
 Increased enrollments and retention numbers result in the primary revenue source that
the campus community does have direct influence on.
 The recognition that we are required to increase our low reserves thus our continued
review of all expenditures, programs, labor force and the ongoing need to address
negative fund balances.
 The campus community welcomed this first step of transparency, given the financial
challenges NMHU is facing. This presentation will be given every year during the latter
part of the fall semester.
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There is also recognition of the need to put in place a better budget and capital planning
process that could meet the needs of upcoming mandatory increases, enrollment,
retentions and marketing efforts.

1) Increasing and Stabilizing the CFI
a. Condition of Financial Index (CFI): Critical Factors
GASB 68. In fiscal year 2015, GASB 68 made it a requirement that all public institutions
recognize pension liabilities in their financial statements. This dramatic change in the reporting
resulted in NMHU having to recognize $46.2 million in pension liabilities resulting in a negative
$45 million in its unrestricted net assets with the condition of financial index (CFI) at an all-time
low of -1.49. The upside for NMHU is that it is a participant of the NM statewide educational
retirement plan, which is underwritten by the state’s $14-billion-dollar permanent fund. It is
this financial backing that makes NMHU’s financial standing low risk. The good news is when
computing NMHU’s CFI without the new GASB 68 reporting requirements, NMHU’s unrestricted
net assets would be $6.1 million, $5.1-million higher from fiscal year 2014 (CFI 0.51) to 1.84 in
2015 (See Appendix H). This increase in NMHU’s numbers was good news and demonstrates
its commitment to continue to improve its CFI and reserves. This was achieved by increases in
tuition and fees, reversing the declining trend in enrollments (with nearly flat enrollments for
the fall of 2014 and spring of 2015), decreases in expenses due to numerous vacancies which
were not filled, and other cost cutting measures.
Highlands Stable Isotopes program. The “Highlands Stable Isotopes” research park was
an initiative that began five years ago by key university personnel focused on generating
significant revenues for the university. Despite numerous efforts to make the research park
successful, to date, it has remained unprofitable, leaving the university with a $1.46 million
deficit.
In July 2015, NMHU shut down the “Highlands Stable Isotopes” operation. We determined that
it was in the best interest of the university to pay a small retainer to the Highlands Stable
Isotopes Chief Scientist to respond to technical questions from potential buyers wanting to
expand the uses of the university’s product portfolio developed under the program, as well as
to protect the university’s intellectual property by keeping the university in a key position to
sell its Hydrazine Neutralization products www.4zeenkleen.com), which could prove profitable
at a later time.
The university’s product portfolio consists of numerous process patents and isotopic
compounds. “Hydrazine Neutralization”, “Unsymmetrical dimethylhydrazine Neutralization”
(currently in the patent process) and plant growth compounds are currently being tested in Far
East markets via a joint venture with Los Alamos National Labs. Two other neutralization
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products are used in aerospace and nuclear power plant industries. Since hydrazine is a fuel
accelerator and anticorrosive chemical that is highly toxic but widely used, it is costly to
manage. Ionized water and bleach are normally used to neutralize hydrazine; however, bleach
mixed with other chemicals creates other toxic reactions. The university’s neutralization
process has been proven to be safer, less reactive, and cost less to produce. This product comes
in liquid or disposal wipes; and when the hydrazine is neutralized, the reaction leaves behind a
white powder bi-product that is naturally produced in the human body and commonly used for
body building. NMHU is currently working with Arch Lonza (www.hydrazine.com), the largest
producer of hydrazine in the US; and the university has an exclusive manufacturing license
agreement with Hydrazine Neutralizing Solutions, Inc. The university’s primary markets are
the Air Force, NASA, and Duke Energy. Another benefit of the nominal retainer is that Hydrazine
neutralization could potentially expand into the health care industry.
b. Efforts to Stabilize the CFI
Background History
NMHU received a letter of concern from the HLC on its “CFI” numbers because they were below
1.0 over a two-year period. NMHU submitted a response on September 13, 2013, which
provided an explanation for the drop in its financial ratios. On November 18, 2013, NMHU
received a letter from HLC’s Financial Panel who reviewed NMHU’s responses. The panel
accepted NMHU’s report with qualifications, but the recommendation had to be endorsed by
the full commission. On March 6, 2014, NMHU received a letter from HLC in response to the
Institutional Action Council (IAC) reaction to NMHU’s financial condition stating “IAC concurred
with the Financial Panel finding and affirmed that the institution continues to address its
financial condition.”
The qualifications were:
1. If the university is required to submit another report due to financial information
provided in a HLC institutional Update, the report must include the following:
a. A plan for improved enrollment practices including an updated enrollment
report and efforts to increase tuition revenues and to improve retention rates.
Response: NMHU hired Dr. Sam Minner, its new president in July 2015. One of
President Minner’s goals is to increase enrollment and improve retention efforts.
After a quick assessment of the executive team, President Minner instituted a
reorganization placing the recruitment, admissions, financial aid, and academic
support offices under a new division headed by a new vice president for strategic
enrollment management. This restructuring included the purchase of analytical
tools and support so that the university’s new team could utilize data-driven
analytics to target specific cohorts of students to improve enrollment for both its
main campus and remote centers. The Provost and Vice President for Academic
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Affairs, and the Vice President for Strategic Enrollment Management have also been
working on streamlining the remote centers’ recruitment practices from a shotgun
approach to a cohort-based recruitment strategy. NMHU is beginning to see some
short-term benefits from these actions. During this current academic year, NMHU
was one of only three statewide institutions that showed increases in enrollment.
Additionally, one of the first cohorts was recruited this spring utilizing the Provost’s
strategies. From last year at this time, NMHU is up by 1,000 admitted students.
Conservatively speaking, using a low yield rate of 16% translates to an increase of
33 students or 11% from the Fall of 2015. Furthermore, NMHU’s campus
community has never been more aware of the need for every department to be a
part of the recruitment and retention effort.
b. Progress on performance of the Highlands Stable Isotopes (HSI), a component
unit of NMHU.
Response: In August 2014, NMHU’s administration assigned the VP of Finance &
Administration to fiscally oversee its HSI. VP Baca met with HSI employees and set
revenue goals of $200 thousand for the 2015 fiscal year and $400 thousand for the
2016 fiscal year. If these goals were unmet, VP Baca would evaluate the
sustainability of the operations. Because HSI was able to achieve minimal revenues
in 2015, VP Baca shut down the operation in the spring of 2015. He kept the
primary researcher on a small contingency of $25K per year so a) the researcher
could answer technical questions from potential buyers and b) to protect the
institution’s process patents. In fiscal year 2016, NMHU incurred a small expense
and continues to expand sales, so the deficit has been kept from increasing any
further. A solvency plan to address the negative fund balance of $1.5 million built
up from previous years is scheduled to be discussed with the university’s Board of
Regents. VP Baca is expected to receive direction from the Board of Regents at their
next meeting scheduled for April 8, 2016.
c. An update on the construction costs overruns with the new student union, or any
other construction project, including any potential litigation or financial
settlement with outside entities.
Response: See NMHU’s response on Table 12 on page 47.
d. An update on financial reserves and the plan to increase cash balances. The
update should include how the university examines expenditure reductions in
order to eliminate deficit spending.
Response:
NMHU continues to closely monitor expenditures and operating reserves since the
submission of its report in November 2013. The VP for Finance and Administration
has been able to increase cash balances from $7.8 million in fiscal year 2014 to $9.1
million in fiscal year 2015, a 17% increase. Revenues have increased from $6.8
million in fiscal 2013 to $7.8 million in fiscal year 2014, an increase of 14%. VP Baca
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has used expenditure reviews across the enterprise to secure nearly $3 million
dollars in savings from fiscal year 2014.
There is still much to do. With the current economic down turn and declining state
revenues caused by plunging oil and gas revenues, the state economy is presently
volatile. In July of 2015, state economists projected $282 million in new revenues
by fiscal year 2017. By December 2015, the revenues had to be adjusted down to
$150 million. During the 2016 legislative session from January through February,
they were once again adjusted down to $30 million. The legislature instituted a
fiscal year 2016 solvency plan, which shaves an additional $145 million. These two
actions have resulted in a reduction in state funding to the institution of $190
thousand for the current 2016 fiscal year and $830 thousand for the 2017 fiscal
year. NMHU is analyzing numerous scenarios to address the 2017 fiscal year short
fall without impeding its forward progress with its enrollment and retention efforts.
In addition, VP Baca is implementing a slowing down of expenditures and reviewing
non-essential vacant positions to absorb the 2016 fiscal year reduction.

Fig. 3. NMHU 5-year CFI trends

NMHU needs to continue to improve its financial footing (see Figure 3). NMHU must
address its component unit research park’s deficit of $1.46 million. It is the current
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administration’s goal to eliminate this deficit over the next two to three fiscal years, which will
also improve the university’s primary reserve and return on net asset ratios in future fiscal years.
NMHU is currently working to achieve a CFI of over 2.0 by 2018, which is achievable if
enrollments increases and other measures are taken, to include another increase in tuition and
fees. NMHU can afford to increase its tuition and fees because, for many years, the Board of
Regents has maintained a fundamental belief in keeping tuition and fees low, and because
NMHU tuition and fees are the lowest for a four-year institution in a 14-state comparison (see
Appendix I).
2) Capital Planning Strategies: Progress in Keeping Projects On-Time, Within Scope and
In-Budget
a. Update on Student Union Building Project
There has been much concern expressed around the state on NMHU’s management of our
2010 construction project of a new “Student Union Building.” NMHU is still in litigation
with the contractor. Currently, the case is out of bankruptcy court and is in the NM state
Court of Appeals. Conversely, there is new information that has been revealed about this
contractor over the past several years that has validated NMHU’s management and
decisions on this project. This contractor had to file for bankruptcy because of the
numerous lawsuits filed by other contractors and other state agencies because of their lack
of performance and not paying subcontractors for work completed. NMHU has been to
numerous mediations against the contractor with other contractors; and in every case,
NMHU has not been required to reimburse any contractor for services rendered nor for
any mismanagement of the project. There have been significant legal costs associated with
this project, and we anticipate being near the end of legal remedies which this contractor
can pursue.
b. Update on Current Building Project.
Our current building project is the “Trolley Building,” future home of one our
growing programs in Media Arts. See Table 12 for a comparison between what NMHU has
done differently on this project versus the Student Union Building project.
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Table 12. Contrast between the Student Union and the Trolley Construction Projects
Student Union Construction Project

Trolley Renovation Project

An internal Project Manager co-managed the

A Construction Project Manager was

project with the former Facilities Director.

externally hired to co- manage the project
with the new Facilities Director. New
Facilities Director was hired with a
financial and project management
background.

A pre-screening of applicants was
performed through a committee. The
Board of Regents was involved with the
selection of the
architectural/engineering firm through a
Request for Proposal (RFP)
qualifications-based procurement. (Nov
14, 2008)
Board of Regents approved the

A pre-screening of applicants was
performed through a committee. The
Board of Regents was involved with the
selection of the
architectural/engineering firm through
a Request for Proposal ( RFP)
qualifications-based procurement. (Nov
1, 2013)

Schematic design of the project. (October

Presentation to the Board of Regents at
each stage of the development of the

6, 2009)

construction plans.
May 6, 2014 – Approval of floor plans
July 14, 2014 – Approval of Schematic
Design
October 10, 2014 – Approval of Design
Developments

Contractor (GC) selected. GC was selected through

February
11, 2015
– Approvalwas
of
A pre-screening
of applicants
Construction
Documents
performed through
a committee. The

a lowest-bid contract. (May 12, 2010)

Board of Regents was involved with the

Board of Regents was updated on General

selection of the General Contractor
through a Request for Proposal (RFP)
qualifications-based procurement. (May
18, 2015)

c. Update on Master Planning Process.
With regard to the five-year Capital Master Plan, the university has hired
StudiolNSITE, the same firm out of Colorado who developed the 2010 Capital Master Plan.
The Master Planners have been directed to assist the university in producing an updated,
five-year Capital Master Plan that physically supports the university's Strategic Plan's
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Goals and Objectives. The Master Planners have already begun meeting with the executive,
general faculty, students, and staff on the main campus to acquire preliminary
information. Work will continue on the Capital Master Plan in conjunction with the
Strategic Plan 's goals and objectives.
3) Mission-Driven, Integrated and Transparent Strategic Planning and Budgeting
Decisions
a. Description of Proposed New Budget Process
A new annual budgeting process has been designed and is being proposed for
consideration by the university. The new process is designed to seek input from various
constituent groups beginning with individual departmental/unit meetings all the way to
university-wide open forums. This process will engage the Faculty, Staff, and Student Senates
financial committees and the newly formed budget and capital planning committee. It will also
include additional budget hearings with chairs, directors, deans, vice presidents, the president
and the governing Board of Regents. Specific activities within the proposed new process and
protocol are illustrated in the proposed budget development timeline included in Core
Component 1 (See Table 1, p. 9).
b. Alignment with HU Vision 2020
The Strategic Planning Steering Committee is scheduled to meet on March 24, 2016, to
finalize the Unit Planning template for distribution to the campus community and to all
personnel in management, supervisory or leadership roles to begin developing unit action plans
and initiatives. A draft of this planning form is included in Appendix B. Instructions and
guidelines will call for actions and initiatives to be clearly linked to one (or more) University
Priorities. These activities will also be addressed in the new Budgeting process.
All departments or units must develop action plans or initiatives to address at least one
of the following University Priorities (and more, if relevant to the unit). For example, all
academic units will be expected to create actions or initiatives to address Priorities A and B.
Student support service units may likely consider their unit plans to address Priorities E and F
to potentially enhance and streamline services, and make those services more accessible
through better communication of services.
HU VISION 2020: Six University Priorities:
A. Academic Excellence, Academic Integration & Student Success
We commit to establish and strengthen systems, structures and programs to enhance
students’ holistic well-being and success at all levels of study (including life-long
learning), through the delivery of High-Impact Practices, such as research and creative
opportunities, increased student engagement, and service learning.
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B. Strategic Enrollment Management
We will establish and implement a Strategic Enrollment Management Plan that
includes target enrollments, recruitment, and retention strategies for all academic
degree programs and delivery sites (inc. Centers and Online).
C. Vibrant Campus and University Life
We will enhance campus life for students, staff, faculty, alumni and community through
expanded intellectual and recreational programs and services at the main campus and
Centers, with a commitment to safety and inclusion.
D. Community Partnerships
We will develop, expand, and enhance collaborative community partnerships for
mutual benefit in the areas of leadership, community and economic development,
community service, academic enrichment, entertainment, and recreation.
E. Technological Advancement and Innovation
We will use technology strategically to support quality, efficiency, and innovation in
daily operations, student support services, and teaching and learning.
F. Enhanced Communication and Efficiency across the University
We will engage in proactive communication at all levels to provide efficient and
effective services.
c. Presentation to Senates and existing committees and Approval Timelines
The VP for Finance and the Budget Director will be presenting the proposed new budget
process and protocol to the Faculty, Staff and Student Senates in March and April, 2016
meetings. The process requires an initial presentation as an information item, then a formal
vote would follow at a later meeting, allowing for input and revisions of the proposed process.
d. (Re)Creation of new Budget Committee
NMHU is the process of re-instituting a “Campus Budget and Planning Committee” (See
Appendix J). This committee will assist the university with creating an operating budget for
higher education given the volatility of the economic markets, changes in demographics,
external pressures from the public and media to keep tuition and fees low, decreased funding
from state appropriations, and, an underlining change of public education funding models
which all contribute to the challenges university planners are having to face today. Maintaining
a consensus-driven, collegial and transparent decision-making process that enables
universities to adapt to the changing environment and situations is paramount. The objective
of this committee is aimed at addressing these challenges through a process where constituent
groups can provide input along the way so that key decision-makers can determine what the
true needs and concerns of the organization are.
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II. Conclusion: Summary of University Responses and Next Steps
Recognition of new senior, executive and administrative leadership
On July 1, 2015, Dr. Sam Minner joined Highlands University as the new President. The six major
goals stated by the Board of Regents for the new president were: academic standing and quality
of student learning, student retention, institutional marketing and recruitment, studentcentered programs/events, evaluation/professional development of administrators, and
community and campus outreach. To achieve some of these goals, it was necessary to create the
appropriate organizational structure, which is addressed below.
In January, 2014, Dr. Teresita Aguilar joined HU as the new Provost and VPAA. Her initial goals
were focused on academic programs, policies and personnel that would contribute to improved
student engagement and success. Two major recent assignments have been Chair of the
Strategic Planning Steering Committee and HLC Liaison.
Other executive and administrative changes have occurred within the last three months, due to
organizational restructuring, vacancies or other personnel matters. Among these new
appointments are Theresa Law, VP for Advancement; Bob Clifford, Athletic Director; Dr.
Edward Martinez, Interim VP for Strategic Enrollment Management; Dr. Carol Linder, Interim
Associate VPAA; Kimberly Blea, Interim Dean of Students; Dr. Jim Alarid, Interim Director of
Research; and Dr. Warren Lail, Interim Graduate Dean. Dr. Diana Marrs joined HU in August,
2015 as the Founding Director of the Center for Teaching Excellence. Dr. Ken Stokes joined HU
as Dean of the College of Arts and Sciences on July 1, 2015, and Dr. Lora Bailey, Dean of the
School of Education, joined HU in February, 2016.
The majority of these changes in leadership personnel happened within four to six months of
the HLC Site Visit of September, 2015. Many of the issues and concerns raised by the Site Visit
Team reflect long-term trends and practices that the new leadership team also recognizes and
fully intends to address, in partnership with the faculty and staff and their respective
representative senates and associations.
Recognition of key restructuring of units/offices to enhance responsiveness
President Minner recognized the need to create an Enrollment Management Office, as this was
not part of the existing structure. There was a lack of administrative oversight of all offices
contributing to recruitment, admissions, enrollment, orientation and retention which was due,
in large part, to the organizational structure. This new VP position was filled in January, 2016.
Since then, VP Martinez has been working with his staff in their new organizational structure,
and in many cases, in new office locations, to build a more coordinated and cohesive structure
to increase enrollments and to implement a Student Retention and Success Plan.
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The Office of the Provost has engaged in a new organizational structure and leadership team to
be more responsive to academic matters and initiatives. Increased focus on High-Impact
Practices, ongoing faculty development opportunities, and initiatives to contribute to student
success (at all locations and through various modes of delivery) are facilitated through this new
organizational structure.
Overview of Actions Completed and Timelines
Table 13 provides a more succinct overview of the actions, approvals and initiatives that HU
has begun, completed or are scheduled for completion/implementation this academic year
and AY 2016-17.
Table 13. Summary of Actions and Approvals Completed and/or Scheduled for Completion in AY
2015-16 and/or 2016-17.

Actions Requiring Formal Approvals

Fac/Staff

Admin

Regents

HLC

New Mission Statement
New Strategic Plan: HU Vision 2020
Contingent Faculty Handbook
Student Retention and Success Plan
Advising Handbook
Distance Education/Learning Manual
Outcomes Assessment Handbook
[to include Co-Curricular Assessment
Plan/proposal
New Budgeting Process, aligned with
HU Vision 2020

Jan/Feb ‘16
Jan/Feb ‘16
Mar 2016
Mar/Apr 2016
Apr 2016
Fall, 2015
(Spr 2015);
To be revised:
Fall, 2016
Apr/May,
2016

Feb, 2016
Feb, 2016
Mar 2016
Apr 2016
May 2016
Apr 2016
Fall, 2016

Feb, 2016
Feb, 2016
April, 2016
TBD, 2016
TBD, 2016
TBD, 2016
TBD, 2016

pending
TBA
Info only
Info only
N/A
Info only
Info only

May 2016

TBD, 2016

Info only

Implementation of Actions/Initiatives

Initiation

Ongoing

Targets:

**Implementation of Integrated Planning

Fall, 2016

YES

** Improved CFI and increased Reserves
** Faculty Development via CTE

2016-17
AY 2015-16

YES
YES

**Dissemination of Policies protocol

Jan, 2016

YES

**Articulation of student support at HU
Centers; improved communication of
services

April, 2016

YES

Integration of University
Priorities, budgeting and
assessment data
2.00 (2018)
Programs; individual
support; grants; HIPs
Key website resources;
Distribution plan;
training on policies
Updated information on
Center webpages; inc. in
orientations; distribution
of printed materials
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Appendix A
HU Vision 2020
Timeline, Constituencies and Actions of Strategic Planning Steering Committee
Date
10/2/14
11/07/14
11/14/14

Purpose and Constituencies
Call for Nominations, Steering Committee
Deadline for Nominations, Steering Committee
Finalize Initial Steering Committee

11/21/14

1st Steering Committee Meeting held

12/08/14

Proposed Themes for Initial Round of Focus
Groups, Suggested times/locations for Groups,
Volunteers for Group Facilitations
Steering Committee meeting to summarize
findings and review timeline.
Campus focus groups/ forums facilitated by
Steering Com members, also meetings for
overview on Kickoff (Jan. 7,12,16,27)
Kickoff Event Main Campus: two one‐hour
sessions held at SUB. Lunch provided.

12/16/14
01/22/15

01/28/15

02/10/15
02/17/15
03/02/15
03/03/15
03/3/15
03/04/15
03/19/15
03/26/15

Community Forum – discuss ways to improve
community partnerships.(Sala de Madrid).
Staff Forum
Steering Committee meeting
Rotary Club Luncheon. Invitation to present.
Open Student Forum: Residence Life Students
Dialogue with personnel in athletics on
university direction and vision
Community Development Forum: local
business and civic leaders in Las Vegas
Presidential luncheon with community and
civic leaders in Las Vegas

Action
Global email from Provost to all campus constituencies
Reviewed nominees; named Steering Committee Members
Post on HU website the Proposed Strategic Planning Process,
Implementation, Action Plans and Follow up.
Identify themes/issues to propose for initial series of campus
focus groups, review previous plan, and review our mission,
vision statement, and core values.
Introductions – New Members, Update Timeline, Kick‐off
Event.
Strategic Planning update, Overview of Kickoff event
Summarize findings and draft Primary Goals and/or Priorities,
also reviewed plans of Kickoff 1/28/15
Present draft documents to campus constituencies for input,
feedback and suggestions. Senate meetings/subcommittees,
as appropriate. Post draft documents/pictures on “NM
Highlands 2020” website for public viewing.
Resulted a list of ideas for the community and NMHU to
partnership.
Discussions and list of ideas from staff
Updates on data collected, update on upcoming forums,
revised timeline, preliminary goals and priorities
Solicited input and comments from Rotary Club
Very low attendance; to reschedule in dorms, rather than SUB.
Chair and member of Steering Committee met with coaching/
support staff; recommendations from university Athletics.
Planning members hosted an open forum with local
community businesses.
Discussion of community development needs/opportunities in
partnership with the university. Recommendations/input from
private, non‐profit, and governmental agencies.
Facilitated by Dr. Sammeth. Questions and dialogue on the
status of graduate education. Recommendations and
strengths of grad and professional education noted.
Panel presentation and open forum. Recognition of current
and prospective partnerships.

03/27/15

Faculty and Staff forum on Graduate Education

03/30/15
03/30/15

Student and Community partnership Forum (at
Charlie’s Restaurant)
Open Student Forum, Residence Life (Kennedy)

03/31/15

Open Student Forum, Residence (Archuleta)

Limited attendance. Chair of steering committee met with RA.

04/13/15

Faculty and Staff Forum on Innovative
Technologies & Online Education.

Video Conferencing to Albuquerque, Main Campus, Santa Fe,
Rio Rancho and Farmington. Discussion on what role can and
should HU play in the delivery of online programs.

Committee Chair hosted an open forum on student
suggestions and issues. List of students comments, concerns
suggestions and recommendations.
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04/27/15
05/13/15
05/28/15
06/1‐7/15
7/11/15
9/25/15
9/27/15
9/27/15
9/28/15
10/05/15

Steering Committee meeting to discuss update
and findings.
Steering Committee reviewed Proposed
Priorities
Steering Committee presented with revised
Core Values and Priorities
Transition to new University President
Sent Correspondence to President Minner
New President, Dr. Sam Minner, endorsed the
Plan for HU Vision 2020
Student Senate (SS) Special Meeting
Governance Room – 5:00 PM
Steering Committee Members Received HU
Vision 2020 Report for Review
HLC Visit – SUB Governance Room 211

Presented initial draft of priority areas and core values.
Drafted language to develop specific priorities.
Follow up meeting to discuss the three proposed priorities.
Suggested wording for two new priority areas, resulting in Five
Priorities to recommend.
Made changes on the final list of proposed Core Values.
Revised wording for final list of five Priorities
Given summary and update on HU Vision 2020 for his review
Strategic Plan Summary Report sent to President Minner for
review, revisions and approval.
President Minner endorsed HU Vision 2020 Priorities and Core
Values, and offered language for new mission statement.
Committee Chair presented HU Vision 2020 Plan documents to
Student Senate for input, feedback and suggestions. Students
agreed to create committee to make recommendation to SS. e
The revised document includes President Minner’s proposed
language for a revised Mission Statement.
2020 Strategic Plan, Forums, Focus Groups Summaries and
Timeline were reviewed by the Higher Learning Commission.

10/14/15

Global email to President, Faculty, Staff,
Students, & External Members of the Steering
Committee
Seeking volunteers from the Steering
Committee to present the HU Vision 2020
Summary Report to Faculty Senate
Faculty Senate Meeting

10/15

Results of 10/14/15 Faculty Senate meeting

10/23/15

Special Meeting with Faculty Members of the
Strategic Planning Steering Committee

10/25/15

Student Senate Meeting

10/26/15
10/26/15

Global Message ‐ Priorities, Core Values and
Vision statement to Staff and Student Senates
Info in reference to 11/10 meeting

10/26/15

Student Senate Resolution

10/26/15

Strategic Planning Steering Committee

10/26/15

Foundations and Priorities Summary sent to
Faculty Senate (one page of each)

11/04/15

Special Faculty‐Only General Faculty Meeting

Discussion of the NMHU Vision 2020 Foundations.

11/05/15

Special Faculty‐Only General Faculty Meeting
Update
Staff Senate Meeting presentation of HU Vision
2020
Faculty Senate input from Special Meeting

Faculty had a discussion on the Mission Statement. A letter
will follow detailing faculty feedback.

10/09/15

11/05/15
11/10/15

Summary Report HU Vision 2020

Dr. Sammeth and Dr. Alarid volunteered to present HU Vision
2020 Summary Report to Faculty Senate on October 14, 2015
Summary Report of HU Vision 2020 was presented at the
Faculty Senate meeting by Dr. Sammeth and Dr. Alarid.
Feedback from the 10/14/15 Faculty Senate Meeting
Reviewed Proposed Strategic Planning Foundations (mission,
vision and core values) and Priorities to be presented at the
Special General Faculty Meeting November 04, 2015.
Signed Resolution – Endorsed the Core Values and Mission
Statement. Offered language for new mission statement.
Seek feedback and input of HU Vision 2020 Plan by all
constituencies, including administration. Attached documents.

Mary Jane to Faculty – Faculty Senate Chair had this
forwarded
A signed Resolution #1, submitted to the Committee Chair and
to the Steering Committee members.
Message sent to Committee Members with Proposed
Foundations and Proposed Priorities. These were sent to the
three Senates for input, recommendations and suggestions.
Special Faculty‐only General Faculty meeting to be held on
Wednesday, November 04, 2015 to discuss the Foundations
and Priorities Summary (one page of each)

Chair attended for Q & A. Invited feedback and input of HU
Vision 2020 Plan. (Sininger 129)
A summary was submitted to the SP Committee Chair and also
forwarded to the Steering Committee members for review.

56

11/12/15

Steering Committee Meeting

11/18/15

Global Message‐ Staff Senate sent an invitation
to staff members.

11/23/15
11/23/15

Staff Senate Meeting ‐ to discuss Foundations
and Priorities
Steering Committee Meeting and Updates

11/23/15

Send Update of HU Vision 2020 to President

11/30/30

Steering Committee Meeting to focus on
developing new university Mission Statement

12/03/15

Update sent to Faculty, Staff and Student
Senate Chairs

12/03/15

Feedback from Faculty Senate Chair

12/04/15

Global Message ‐ to participate in the survey to
select the new university Mission Statement

12/4‐7/15
12/10/15

Updates on Mission Statement Survey
Deadline to complete Mission Statement
Survey
Steering Committee Meeting and Updates

12/11/15
12/15/15

Via Email: Update sent to Senate Chairs and
HU Community

12/17/15

Meeting with Faculty Senate Chair

12/17/15

BOR Meeting

1/12/16

Via email to Senate leader to share with
constituencies to make a selection of one of
the two options
Input from constituencies on Core Values via
emails
Input from constituencies on Core Values via
emails

1/26/16
2/1/16

1/22/16

Steering Committee Meeting

2/3/16

Strategic Planning Steering Committee

Steering Committee Members reviewed the Student Senate
Signed Resolution and the General Faculty Meeting Summary.
Foundations and Priorities Summary (one page of each) were
sent as an attachment for review and to provide feedback.
Meeting was scheduled for November 23, 2015
Staff Senate Subcommittee submitted feedback on the
Proposed Foundations and Priorities.
Follow up meeting to discuss and review all constituencies’
input to the Priorities, Core Values and Vision statement.
President Minner reviewed; recommendations for moving
forward
Discussion on Mission Statement. Developed four (4) possible
statements, based on multiple sources of input. Timeline was
proposed for implementation of the survey to be completed
by December 10 by all campus/community constituencies.
Update on moving forward selecting a Mission Statement
using a survey. Timeline provided to all Senate Chairs to share
with their constituencies and encourage completion of survey.
Include check off box on survey, to track amount of staff,
faculty, students, and community members participated in the
Mission Statement Survey.
Updates and Survey Link provided to HU community, LV
Chamber, and Alumni. Link Posted on NMHU Main Website.
Also on Facebook & Twitter. Sent out to 8,000 email contacts
236 have viewed the survey. 225 have completed the survey.
Mission Statement Survey comments were sent to the
Steering Committee members for review
Review final files for the Mission Survey on Mission Statement
and prepared to present to the BOR for approval.
Sent recommended Mission Statement that was generated by
the Strategic Planning Steering Committee. Revisions based on
the global survey ranking results and added commentary.
Prepare a new survey with two options for a new mission
statement: Option D on the original survey OR the newly
crafted statement by the Steering Committee. Results will be
compiled and presented to the BOR for their approval.
Recommendation for Action: NMHU Mission Statement
Tabled pending additional input from constituencies.
#1‐ Most popular Mission Statement selection (Option D)
From Survey Results. #2 ‐ Proposed modification/combination
of Options D & A and suggestions for open‐ended responses
Comments were sent for review on the Core Value
descriptions and suggestions on the language.
Final input on this framework for HU Vision 2020 to prepare to
seek approval by the Board of Regents. This document reflects
the new Mission Statement, Vision Statement, Core Values
and Six University Priorities proposed by the Strategic Planning
Steering Committee. Present this to respective constituencies
for final input and endorsement. We would like to present this
to the Board of Regents at the next meeting.
Reviewed all recommendations and proposed changes from
the Library, Faculty Senate, and all email and meeting notes.
Also reviewed Proposed Presidential Targets and Goals.
JC's Pizza Off campus 131 Bridge Street
To review final input for framework for HU Vision 2020
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2/4/16

Staff Senate Meeting

2/10/16

Faculty Senate Meeting

2/19/16

Steering Committee Meeting

2/20/16

Final Framework for BOR

2/23/16

Faculty Senate Updates

2/26/16

BOR Meeting

2/29/2016

Global Message – announcing status of HU
Vision 2020, including Board of Regents
approval

3/24/16

Strategic Planning Steering Committee
Meeting

4/1 to 5/18

Draft and develop Unit level action plans and
initiatives by all university constituency groups;
Hold campus workshops to assist units.

The Staff Senate approved the endorsement of both the
Strategic Plan Document (Mission and Vision Statements,
Priorities, and Core Values)
HU Vision 2020 Senate Official Recommendations regarding
the HU Vision 2020
Prepare Framework for BOR to be held on 2/26/2016
Mission Statement, Vision Statement, Core Values, Priorities
and Presidential Targets and Priorities.
The Chair of Steering Committee sent an email to colleagues
to review the final framework of the HU 2020 Strategic Plan
Suggestions we provide can be used by the Strategic Planning
Committee to improve the document, and that we can clarify
what the next steps will be after that point. Having an
additional Forum led by the Strategic Planning Committee
would also be a good idea.
New NMHU Mission Statement – APPROVED
NMHU Vision 2020 Strategic Planning Framework – APPROVED
Approval of the HU Vision 2020 Strategic Plan Framework and
with this approval we have a new Mission Statement, Vision
Statement, Core Values and University Priorities. Pending
approval of the new Mission Statement by the HLC.
Consider new members of the Steering Committee (or what
approach might be use to fill vacant positions). Review the
unit action plans/initiatives templates and make revisions
prior to broader university dissemination
Provide guidelines for preparing unit action plans/initiatives
linked to University Priorities. Assist units in drafting action
plans/initiatives, incl proposed targets; assessment strategies.

Next Steps
May – July,
2016

Director of Communications with members of
the Strategic Planning Steering Committee

Create “HU Vision 2020” planning documents. Include
samples of current actions and initiatives being
implemented consistent with the Five Priorities and
Core Values.

TBD

NMHU Liaison to HLC

Submit Final version of HU Vision 2020 to HLC, following
formal approval of new mission statement (pending).
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Strategies for 2016‐2020

NMHU Vision Statement:
Our vision is to be a premier university transforming lives and communities now and for generations to come.
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
NMHU Core Values:

F.

E.

D.

C.

CMASR Director: Dr. Teresita Aguilar

Page 1

We commit to establish and strengthen systems, structures and programs to enhance students’ holistic
well-being and success at all levels of study (including life-long learning), through the delivery of High-Impact Practices such as research and creative opportunities, increased student
engagement, and service learning.
Strategic Enrollment Management: We will establish and implement a Strategic Enrollment Management Plan that includes target enrollments, recruitment, and retention strategies
for all academic degree programs and delivery
sites (inc. Centers and Online).
Vibrant Campus and University Life: We will enhance campus life for students, staff, faculty, alumni and community through expanded intellectual and recreational programs and
services at the main campus and Centers, with a commitment to safety and inclusion.
Community Partnerships: We will develop, expand, and enhance collaborative community partnerships for mutual benefit in the areas of leadership, community and economic
development, community service, academic enrichment, entertainment, and recreation.
Technological Advancement and Innovation: We will use technology strategically to support quality, efficiency, and innovation in daily operations, student support services, and
teaching and learning.
Enhanced Communication and Efficiency across the University: We will engage in proactive communication at all levels to provide efficient and effective services.

A. Academic Excellence, Academic Integration & Student Success:

NMHU UNIVERSITY PRIORITIES:

We collaboratively and efficiently address internal and external issues in a timely and respectful manner.

 Responsiveness

We commit to provide opportunity and affordability to all students and professional advancement for all staff and faculty.

 Accessibility

As an Hispanic-Serving Institution (HSI) and an aspiring Native American-Serving Non-Tribal Institution (NASNTI), we welcome national, international, and indigenous students,
and consider diversity as our strength. We acknowledge and embrace the cultural values, experiences and multiple identities within our community through inclusion and fairness.

 Diversity

We strive to excel in all that we do. Excellence shapes our choices and actions in education, research, creative activities and service.

 Excellence

B.

*[Submitted for HLC Approval on Feb 29, 2016; pending approval]

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Approved by Board of Regents, February 26, 2016

*Proposed new NMHU Mission Statement:
New Mexico Highlands University is a public comprehensive university serving our local and global communities. Our mission is to
provide opportunities for undergraduate and graduate students to attain an exceptional education by fostering creativity, critical
thinking and research in the liberal arts, sciences, and professions within a diverse community.

APPENDIX B. New Mexico Highlands University
HU Vision 2020 Strategic Plan: Unit Activities and Initiatives

Appendix B
Unit Planning Template: HU Vision20 20
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Build upon the strengths and expertise of …..

1.1a.
1.1b.
1.1c.
1.2a.
1.3a.
1.3b.
1.3c.

1.1.

1.3.

2.1a.
2.1b.
2.1c.
2.2a.
2.2b
2.3c.

3.1.

3.1a.
3.1b.

3.1a Fa
3.1b. AY 17‐18

Timeline

2.1a Sp 2017
2.1b. Fa 2017
2.1c. ongoing
2.2a. Sp 2017
2.2b. Sp 2018
2.3c. ongoing

Timeline

1.1a. Fall, 2016
1.1b. SP, 2017
1.1c. SP, 2017
1.2a. AY 2016‐
2017
1.3a.
1.3b
1.3c.

1.3a.
1.3b.
1.3.c

1.1a/b.
1.1 a/b
1.1c.
1.2a.

2.1a. Documentation of
2.1b. Compilation of
2.1c. Evaluation summaries of…
2.2a.
2.2b.
2.3c.

3.1a
3.1b.

Page 2

3.1a.
3.1b.

Personnel/Resources Evaluation Criteria

2.1a.
2.1b
2.1c.
2.2a.
2.2b.
2.3c.

Personnel/Resources Evaluation Criteria

1.3a
1.3b.
1.3a.

1.1a.
1.1b.
1.1c.
1.2a

Personnel/Resources Evaluation Criteria

CMASR Director: Dr. Teresita Aguilar

NMHU Priority #3 Vibrant Campus and University Life
UNIT Goal/Target
Initiatives and Strategies

2.2.

2.1.

NMHU Priority #2 Strategic Enrollment Management
UNIT Goal/Target
Initiatives and Strategies

1.2.

Strategies for 2016‐2020

INITIATIVES IN ALIGNMENT WITH UNIVERSITY PRIORITIES, Mission, Vision, and Core Values

Coordinate and assist in professional development….

Support and encourage students to…..

NMHU Priority #1 Academic Excellence, Academic Integration & Student Success
UNIT Goal/Target
Initiatives and Strategies
Timeline






To achieve our mission, the [UNIT] will: [examples only]

The mission of the [office/department of …..] is to…..

[YOUR UNIT] Mission Statement

APPENDIX B. New Mexico Highlands University
HU Vision 2020 Strategic Plan: Unit Activities and Initiatives
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3.1c.
3.2

4.2a.
4.2b

4.2

5.1a.
5.1b
5.2a.
5.2b
5.3

5.1a.
5.1b
5.2a.
5.2b
5.3

Timeline

4.2a.
4.2b

4.1a Fa
4.1b. AY 2017‐
18
4.1c. Sp 2018

Timeline

3.1c. Sp 2018
3.2

6.1
6.2
6.3a.
6.3b.

6.3a.
6.3b.

3.1c.
3.2

4.2a.
4.2b

4.1a.
4.1b.
4.1c.

5.1a.
5.1b
5.2a.
5.2b
5.3

6.3a.
6.3b.

6.3a.
6.3b.

Personnel/Resources Evaluation Criteria

5.1a.
5.1b
5.2a.
5.2b
5.3

Personnel/Resources Evaluation Criteria

4.2a.
4.2b

4.1a
4.1b.
4.1c.

Personnel/Resources Evaluation Criteria

3.1c.
3.2

Strategies for 2016‐2020

CMASR Director: Dr. Teresita Aguilar

Page 3

1. PROPOSE UNIT INITIATIVES AND STRATEGIES FOR ONE OR MORE OF THE UNIVERSITY PRIORITIES. [Not required to address ALL priorities. Only those relevant to your UNIT].
2. Consider the Four Core Values in when creating Initiatives and Strategies.
3. Seek alignment with University Mission and Vision.

NOTES:

6.1
6.2
6.3

NMHU Priority #6 Enhanced Communication and Efficiency across the University
UNIT Goal/Target
Initiatives and Strategies
Timeline

5.3

5.2

5.1

NMHU Priority #5 Technological Advancement and Innovation
UNIT Goal/Target
Initiatives and Strategies

4.1a.
4.1b.
4.1c.

4.1.

NMHU Priority #4 Community Partnerships
UNIT Goal/Target
Initiatives and Strategies

3.2

APPENDIX B. New Mexico Highlands University
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APPENDIX C – Contingent Faculty Handbook
TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................................................... 3
FACULTY DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................... 3
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ACADEMIC CALENDAR ..................................................................................................................... 6
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT ..................................................................................................... 6
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faculty Resources ................................................................................................................................ 14
POLICIES ........................................................................................................................................ 14
Information Technology Resource Policy ........................................................................................... 15
Sexual Harassment Policy Statement .................................................................................................. 15
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LEAVE POLICY .................................................................................................................................. 16
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EVALUATION OF VISITING AND RETAINED TERM FACULTY ........................................... 19
EVALUATION OF RETAINED TERM FACULTY ............................................................................. 19
EVALUATION OF TERM AND PER-COURSE FACULTY ......................................................... 20
OBSERVATION AND EVALUATION OF RETAINED TERM FACULTY ......................................... 20
CAMPUS CONTACT INFORMATION.......................................................................................... 24
APPENDIX A: SAMPLE CONTRACTS ............................................................................... 26
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Appendix D
Evaluation form for Contingent Faculty
SUMMARY EVALUATION FORM FOR TERM/PER‐COURSE FACULTY
TO BE COMPLETED BY SUPERVISING DEAN OR DEPARTMENT CHAIR

Student evaluations and classroom observation (if
applicable) indicate exceptional performance. The
faculty member is eligible for continued
employment.

Exceeds expectations

Meets Expectations
Student evaluations and classroom observation (if
applicable) indicate satisfactory performance. The
faculty member is eligible for continued
employment.
Needs to improve

Student evaluations and classroom observation (if
applicable) indicate satisfactory performance, but
point to a need for improvement in some aspects of
instruction. The faculty member may be eligible for
continued employment, with careful supervision.

Unsatisfactory performance

Student evaluations and classroom observation (if
applicable) indicate unsatisfactory performance. The
faculty member is not eligible for continued
employment.

Comments & Observations

Dean or Department Chair Signature __________________________

Date__________________

Vice President of Academic Affairs____________________________ Date__________________

63

Appendix E
Contingent Faculty Orientation and Professional Development
One Day Model
Thursday of Faculty Development Week

Required for all term and per‐course faculty. Visiting and retained term faculty will attend the
whole Professional Development Week. All essential activities will be available in‐person, via
Zoom/ITV, and online for faculty who cannot come to a campus.

8:00‐9:00: Breakfast at CTE
9:00‐9:30: Welcome from Provost (Dr. Aguilar)
9:30‐10:00: Contingent Faculty Handbook Overview (Dr. Kempner)
10:00‐11:00: Banner training / E‐mail / Other IT Training for New Faculty
CTE activities for returning faculty
11:00‐12:00: HR stuff for new faculty / CTE activities for returning faculty
12:00‐1:00 Lunch Break

1:00‐2:30: Department Meetings
2:30‐3:00: Meeting with Faculty Senate on Contingent Faculty Issues and Concerns
3:00‐5:00: Break‐out sessions (D2L trainings, diversity trainings, student services, writing center,
Cleary act)
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APPENDIX F
CENTER FOR TEACHING EXCELLENCE
Fall 2015 Report

Needs analysis
Two strategies have been used to gather a list of needs – an online survey sent to all faculty/adjuncts, and a
request sent out to chairs to attend faculty department meetings. In addition, some faculty have
approached me individually, and I have met with other service centers. This report is a compilation from
these sources.
Departmental meetings:






Service areas:

Media Arts and Technology
English
Chemistry/Biology
Visual and Performing arts
Educational Leadership
Nursing






Music (working on a date)
Curriculum & Instruction (at RR)
Dr. Romero – regarding diversity
and Universal Studies program
Sociology (upcoming Dec. 5)

 Library services
 Advisory committee
 STEM faculty at ARMAS Friday
 ARMAS
coffee
 EOS
 Freshman Experience/LCs
Based on these meetings and the responses from the web survey, the following needs were raised:
Teaching related training topics














Active learning
Classroom mgmt. tardiness, absences, not doing homework, cell phone use
Assessment/how to know if the student is really learning
How to increase student engagement and involvement in class, service, career fairs, other
opportunities
How to give a better lecture (presumably to keep students engaged), toast masters
Teaching methodologies that work with this student population
Creating more dialogue and community online
Backward course design
Syllabus writing – what’s required, is there a template,
Writing better objectives/outcomes
Creative teaching, creative delivery of content
How to motivate students, provide positive reinforcement rather than penalties
Hearing from other faculty what they are doing/best practices
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Faculty advising
Peer mentoring, peer evaluation
Flipped class
Effective use of videos
D2L training both for traditional and for online courses
Zoom versus ITV and effective techniques
Effective online teaching strategies
Best practices for online, hybrid
How to use smart boards effectively (to be held in English classroom)
Digital humanities
The use of social media in courses
How to teach writing/writing across the curriculum (non‐writing profs needing help)

Other requests








Access to computer labs – some capstone courses have a lot of writing, don’t need it all the time
Software requests
Training on excel
Library instruction for classes – how to do research, use databases, government info
Need access to D2L sooner than 3 days before class starts (multiple complaints re course prep)
Brown bags for adjuncts to discuss issues
GTA training

CTE proposed additions for the future
A recurring topic that I’ve heard is the need to build more community among faculty, particularly across
disciplines. In addition, we would all like to do more promotion of the excellence within our ranks. I’ve
spoken to Jean Hill about including a summary report of the faculty’s productivity reports at the Fall Faculty
and Staff development week. Below is a list of additional trainings and scheduled events to support these
goals, as well as a few other needed training themes.










Learning communities for teachers
Institute teaching awards, nominated by departments. 1 Faculty, 1 adjunct. (do we have
anything like this?). Would require advisory council judging
Wednesday morning sessions? Or Friday afternoons socials? Series for best practices/teaching
methods – 20 minute videos + discussion
Ongoing, throughout the year D2L topics, repeated for maximum access, co‐presented w/EOS
If we meet the endowment grant fund goals, will need a series of trainings focused on HIPs
Series for other tech topics like zoom, videos, how to structure blended, online
Have a “Focus on Faculty” section on the website where (hopefully) each month I can brag on a
faculty member (or adjunct). I plan to interview Dr. Deacon (SW) and start with him. That will
be paired with a campus‐wide presentation he has agreed to give (starting as a relative
technology newbie, he is now on the cutting edge of hybrid instruction). Once this gets started,
the goal will be for faculty to nominate each other to be the monthly feature.
Everyone is required by law to have sexual harassment training. Reflecting on how this was
administered to faculty and staff this year, I have concerns that not all employees including
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GTAs and adjuncts received the training. This should be online and we need IT to track who
completes it.

Spring –summer 2016 proposed activities
The events and activities in the list below are in the planning stages for spring and summer:













Spring pre‐semester 2 day faculty development
I’ve contacted OnCourse for a possible 1 day intermediate training. (this is active learning) Along
with the active learning pre‐semester, presentation to faculty on helping their students with
process writing, a presentation on the writing center, D2L training
Possible ½ or 1 day on peer evaluation and peer mentoring $3000 ‐ late spring
CTE is working with ARMAS and the Diversity council on a presentation by Stafford Hood CREA ‐
Culturally responsive evaluation and assessment. Helping faculty reflect on their own beliefs and
how that may impact their teaching. Cost yet unknown, mid‐spring likely
Working with LCs and Student success on series of webinars (CTE cost $450) for freshman success.
Includes integrated advising, assessment and teaching, understanding social and emotional factors
affecting our freshman and impacting engagement. Three this fall, 1 next spring
Stipends for course redesign – 1 week in summer,
o Would like advisory council to review and choose who receives
Stipends for LC to meet and build integrated curriculum summer 2 day institute
Purchase of magna video publications – 20 minute videos on all teaching pedagogy topics (32 for
$599, 1 week access each, distributed through email link and/or planned sessions
Continue working with Faculty development committee on Fall 2016 development week

Summary Fall 2015 CTE activities
Startup
 Coordinated CTE center construction
 Created website
 Hosting open house Nov. 20. President, VPAA, local media, Emeriti attending in addition to invite to
all staff and faculty
Faculty engagement/trainings, consultations, center visits
 5 individual consultations: online recording, course redesign for online, GTA training, student issues
 3 classroom observations
 3 requests for rubrics/guidelines: 2 depts. peer observations, 1 online quality rubric
 Presented to Faculty senate, SOE faculty, All faculty mtg, President’s council
 SW adjunct training in Farmington
 Visit to RR for faculty meeting and meet and greet. Upcoming ITV training Nov 23rd
 Visiting Santa Fe Nov. 23rd
 Hosted 1 Webinar
 Conducted 4 trainings – social media/online communication options
 Hosted 1 faculty presentation on Diversity and cognitive factors
 Working with LCs and Student success on series of webinars (CTE cost $450) for freshman success.
Includes integrated advising, assessment and teaching, understanding social and emotional factors
affecting our freshman and impacting engagement. Three this fall, 1 next spring
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APPENDIX G
Assessment of Co‐Curricular Activities
Co‐curricular activities at Highlands have historically been assessed at the
programmatic level, with no overall processes for assessments. The University is
currently in the process of developing those processes and the timeline for their
development is at the end of this document.
This summary will provide information on the assessments of several programs that
are already being conducted and how those will be improved and incorporated into
a comprehensive evaluation of student learning outcomes in co‐curricular activities.
Those programs are:







Internships, Practicums and Field Experiences
Achieving in Research, Math and Science Program (ARMAS)
First Year Experience Program
The Writing Center
Career Services
Student Clubs and Organizations

The current state of assessment in each of these areas and their plans for developing
plans for the assessment of student learning outcomes are summarized and
highlighted below.
Use of Student and Alumni Surveys
Highlands currently conducts a student satisfaction survey of all graduating students
each year. We also survey our alumni three years after graduation. While these
surveys do address outcomes after graduation, they currently include limited
questions regarding participation in extra‐curricular activities, including internships,
while at Highlands. This spring we will be including questions from the alumni and
student satisfaction surveys developed by the Higher Education Data Sharing
Consortium to address this limitation.
In addition, in the fall of 2016, Highlands will be administering a First Destination
Survey for the first time. This will be an annual survey that is sent in the fall to all
alumni who graduated the previous year. It is designed specifically to collect
employment data on our recent alumni, but it will also be used to assess the link
between extra‐curricular experiences at Highlands (including internships) and
employment after graduation. We are using guidelines from the National Association
of Colleges and Employers and the first destination developed by the Higher
Education Data Sharing Consortium to construct the survey.

68

Internships, Practicums and Field Experience
We have a great deal of assessment data related to student learning outcomes and
internships, practicums, and field experience placements that are already collected
and reported as an established part of Academic Program Outcomes Assessment
process.
Using our Banner‐based assessment system, we were able to identify every
assessment measure related to these experiences and compile the “Assessment of
Practicum, Internship, and Field Experience Report, 2014‐2015.” That report is is
available on the NMHU website here http://www.nmhu.edu/institutional‐
research/academic‐program‐outcomes‐assessment/.
The recommendations from the report are:





Ensure that all programs that involve practicums, internships or field
experiences include at least one assessment of those experiences in their
annual outcomes assessment process.
Ensure that the Student Learning Outcomes associated with these
experiences are specific to the experiences.
Ensure that the measures of those Student Learning Outcomes are direct
measures of the students’ performance during the placement and of the
role of the placement in preparing the student for work post‐graduation.

In addition to internship experiences offered through the academic programs, NMHU
students also have access to these experiences through the ARMAS program and
through Career Services (discussed below). Both of these programs will be
developing Student Learning Outcomes and means of assessment for their internship
programs to allow for a comprehensive assessment of NMHU internship programs.
The changes to the NMHU Graduating Student Satisfaction and Alumni surveys and
the addition of the First Destination Survey will also support all of these programs in
assessing the impact of the internship programs on the preparation of students for
work post‐graduation.
First Year Experience Program (FEP)
As part of its creation and approval, the FEP had developed an evaluation plan. That
plan included a number of goals related to retention and graduation. The program
was designed to meet these goals through increasing academic integration, social
integration, academic skills, and adaptive personal skills, and these areas were also
included in the evaluation plan. While not phrased as “student learning outcomes” in
the evaluation plan, the program goals are clearly student learning outcomes.
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The “First Year Experience Program Evaluation Fall 2015” measure the following:


Social Integration was measured through 15 questions on the First Year
Experience Program survey administered in the last week of classes. The
questions addressed the extent to which students felt they had developed
meaningful relationships with their peers, and meaningful connections to the
University and the Las Vegas community.



Academic Integration was measured through 14 questions on the FEP
survey. The questions addressed the extent to which the students had
developed positive, ongoing relationships with faculty, advisors, and peer
mentors. Students were also asked about the development of clear academic
and career goals, and their understanding of basic processes at the University,
such as how to declare a major and how to register for classes.



Academic Skills were measured through 10 questions on the FEP survey.



Adaptive Persons Skills were measured through 9 questions on the FEP
survey. Adaptive Personal Skills were also measured through the 8‐item Grit
Scale developed in the Duckworth Lab at the University of Pennsylvania. This
scale was administered twice: once before midterm and once at the end of the
semester.

In discussions of the results from our first evaluation of the FEP (which began at
midterm) it became clear that we actually were not directly addressing Academic
Skills or Adaptive Personal Skills in the specific curriculum of the program. We are
currently discussing how to address this finding.
The evaluation also made clear that Social Integration and Academic Integration are
potentially the most powerful paths to increasing academic success for our first‐time
freshmen. As a result the program has instituted procedures to ensure that incoming
freshmen are enrolled in the Learning Community that best meets their educational,
career, and personal goals.
The program has also instituted two additional components designed to support
Social Integration. In the 2015 evaluation, a number of students mentioned that they
would have appreciated the opportunity to interact with students in other Learning
Communities. As a result of that feedback the program has added the component of
“Highlands Haciendas”, groupings of five Learning Communities with classes that
meet at common times allowing for integrated meetings. First‐time freshmen are
required to live on campus (unless they are within 50 miles of their home) and our
housing office is working with the coordinator of the FEP to ensure that members of
the Highlands Haciendas are housed in common areas.
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The evaluation of the NMHU Freshman Experience Program also includes
information on specific student learning outcomes that align with the goals of the
program to increase freshmen retention and graduation rates. The evaluation of
those goals is publically available on the NMHU website, along with the evaluations
of our freshman retention and graduation rates.
Achieving in Research, Math and Science (ARMAS)
ARMAS is a long‐standing, partially‐grant funded program at NMHU. The program is
currently funded through two grants, Promoting Real Opportunities for Professional
Experiential Learning (Project PROPEL) and Pathways to Achievement and Student
Success (PASS), as well as through institutional support. Both grants have clearly
stated goals for student success that are regularly evaluated, and the ARMAS program
publishes a yearly evaluation report summarizing the data on goal attainment.
The following data are from the “Summer 2015 ARMAS Summary Book”. The graphs
illustrate the effects of supplemental instruction on grades in STEM gateway courses.
Grades in STEM Gateway Courses Before and After Implementation of SI
Biol 211 Grades with and without Supplemental Instruction
SI (average of 9 semesters)
32%
28%
14%

18% 19%

14% 15%

10%

%A

%B

No SI (average of 5 semesters)

%C

%D

14%

11%

%F

10% 11%

%W

Biol 212 Grades with and without Supplemental Instruction
SI (average of 9 semesters)
34%
26%

No SI (average of 5 semesters)

26%
16%

20%

17% 19%

17%

14%
9%

%A

%B

%C

%D

%F

9%

5%

%W
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Chem 211 Grades
with and without Supplemental Instruction
SI (average of 8 semesters)

No SI (average of 6 semesters)

29% 28%

14%

13%

8% 7%

%A

21%

19% 19%

15% 16%

8%

%B

%C

%D

%F

%W

The PASS grant provides funds for, among other things, the supplemental instruction
program and the ARMAS support center. The following are outcomes are from the
evaluation report “Pathways to Achievement and Student Success (PASS), October 1,
2014 to September 30, 2015.”








In Fall 2014, 83% of NMHU students receiving supplemental instruction passed with
a C or higher in STEM gateway courses compared to only 54% of students not
receiving supplemental instruction. Similarly, in Spring 2015, 86% of NMHU students
receiving supplemental instruction passed with a C or higher in STEM gateway
courses compared to 58% of students not receiving supplemental instruction.
In Fall 2015, a much higher percentage of the Fall 2011 Freshman cohort who
participated in ARMAS have been retained or graduated at NMHU (44% vs. 13%) and
in STEM (38% vs. 9%) than those who did not participate.
At NMHU, the ARMAS STEM support center was frequented 12,256 times by students
during the 2014‐15 academic year. Twenty‐four percent of the visits were to study
with the Supplemental Instruction Leaders (SILs).
NMHU students highly rated the quality and effectiveness of the tutoring, mentoring,
and resource services they received the fourth year of the project. Eighty‐five percent
of the students at NMHU indicated that the SILs helped them “a lot” to successfully
complete their coursework.

Project PROPEL provides funding for internships and professional development
courses. The latest evaluation report, “PROPEL End‐of‐Year Summery 2014‐2015”
provides a great deal of information on the success of these programs. An example
from the report presented below examines the relationship between internship
placement and preparation for employment in Natural Resource Management
careers.
Summary of Results: All fifteen (100%) of the interns rated that they were “very satisfied”
to “satisfied” with the opportunity to expand their interest and awareness of careers in NRM.
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In addition, 93% rated that they are “very satisfied” or “satisfied” with the effectiveness of
Project PROPEL to enhance their employability in NRM.
2014 Fall Semester Outcomes. All seven
interns 100% rated that they were "very
satisfied or "satisfied" with the opportunity to:
 expand their interest and awareness
of careers in NRM
 83% rated that they were "very
satisfied or "satisfied" with the
effectiveness of Project PROPEL to
enhance their employability in NRM.

2015 Spring Semester Outcomes. All spring
interns (100%) rated that they were “very
satisfied” or “satisfied” with the opportunity
to:
 expand their interest and awareness
of careers in NRM; and
 the effectiveness of Project PROPEL
to enhance their employability in
NRM.

The ARMAS staff will be developing a formal report of the assessment of student
learning outcomes throughout the program for inclusion in the University’s outcomes
assessment program.
The Writing Center
The Writing Center produces a formal evaluation report every year. The latest report,
“Writing Center Annual Report 2014‐2015” includes a thoughtful discussion of their
data gathering and assessment efforts, best practices in the field, and improvements
planned for the 2015‐2016 academic year. The evaluation includes a specific
discussion of the use of the Writing Center by online students and students at the
Centers.
Career Services
Career Services provides a yearly report of the activities of the office (“Career Services
Report 2014‐2015”), The Career Services Office will be developing an outcomes
assessment plan with specific student learning outcomes and means of assessment
for implementation in the fall.
Student Clubs and Organizations
Highlands is going to move to an online chartering form in the beginning of the fall
2016 semester. This will allow for the accurate collection of student names and ID
numbers so that student club activity can be correlated with such outcomes as
retention and graduation, as well as the database of learning outcomes assessment
generated by the academic programs.
In addition to connecting student involvement in clubs and organizations with
learning outcomes assessment data that are currently be collected, we will also be
adding questions regarding this area to our Graduating Student Satisfaction, Alumni,
and First Destination surveys discussed above.
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The Office of Campus Life will be developing an outcomes assessment plan with
specific student learning outcomes and means of assessment for implementation in
the fall.
Timeline for Implementation









Addition of survey items directly related to experience with co‐curricular
activities to the Graduating Student Survey and the Alumni Survey – Spring
2016.
Implementation of the First Destination Survey – Fall 2016.
Identification of specific Student Learning Outcomes and development of
plans for their assessment for each program listed above and other co‐
curricular programs – by Fall 2016.
Implementation of online Chartering Form for Student Clubs and
Organizations – Fall 2016.
Decision regarding the appropriate body for the oversight and review of
assessment activities in these programs – by Fall 2016.
Inclusion of these processes in the NMHU Assessment Handbook – Fall 2016.
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Appendix H
Financial Ratios
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO HIGHLANDS UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
Year Ended June 30, 2014
Primary
Institution
Non operating revenues (expenses)
State appropriations
State land, permanent fund and investment income
Interest and investment income/(loss)
Capital appropriations
Net non-operating revenues

$

Income before other revenues, expenses, gains and losses

Stable Isotopes
Corporation

31,564,698
252,567
538,809
1,067,088
33,423,162
5,739,326

Highlands
Foundation
$

143,357

(296,853)

143,357
403,283

Other - non operating expenses
Interest on indebtedness
Additions to permanent endowments
Other
Total other

2,127,173
2,127,173

(Decrease)/Increase in Net Position
Net Position
Net Position - beginning of year
Restatement
Net Position - beginning of year, as restated
Net Position, end of year

$

-

75,289
75,289

3,612,153

(296,853)

478,572

67,907,161
4,938,180
72,845,341

(1,169,206)
(1,169,206)

10,343,117

76,457,494
76,457,494
0

(1,466,059) $

10,821,689

10,343,117

See Notes to Financial Statements.

21

78

79

80

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO HIGHLANDS UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Primary
Institution
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
(net of an allowance of $4,843,744)
Grants receivable
(net of an allowance of $411,630
Other receivables
Inventories
Prepaid assets
Total current assets

$

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash
Assets held by others
Due from component unit
Investments
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Deferred Outlows

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Unearned revenue
Accrued Interest Payable
Bonds payable-current
Notes payable-current
Total current liabilities

Total Net Position and Liabilities

- $

233,780

914,111

-

-

1,832,668
1,473,099
442,367
34,269
13,801,623

-

10,000
3,103
246,883

2,324,161
1,763,960
1,466,059
7,369,119
84,968,670
97,891,969

-

113,559
6,673,077
6,646,569
13,433,205

3,235,341

-

-

114,928,933 $

- $

13,680,088

$

4,681,946 $
796,780
3,892,040
207,440
1,055,000
75,000
10,708,206

- $
-

6,936
1,265
1,086,208
1,094,409

204,577
27,311,427
306,250
46,229,519
74,051,773

Deferred Inflows

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for
Nonexpendable
Restricted for scholarships and grants
Expendable
Restricted for scholarships and grants
Loans
Capital projects
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Highlands
Foundation

$

Noncurrent Liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Due to University
Assets held for others
Bonds payable long-term portion
Notes payable-long term portion
Net Pension Libility
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

9,105,109 $

Stable Isotopes
Corporation

1,466,059
1,466,059

1,763,990
1,763,990

4,891,155
$

89,651,134 $

1,466,059 $

2,858,399

$

56,222,420 $

- $

5,560,361

-

4,180,940

9,001,729
1,104,939
535,463
3,450,244
(45,036,995)
25,277,800
$

114,928,934 $

(1,466,059)
(1,466,059)
- $

582,253
498,135
10,821,689
13,680,088

See Notes to Financial Statements.

81

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO HIGHLANDS UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Year Ended June 30, 2015
Primary
Institution
Operating revenues
Tuition and fees
Tuition discounts and allowances

Federal grants and contracts
State and local grants and contracts
Private grants and contracts
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises
Contributions
Other
Total operating revenues
Expenses
Instruction and general
Instruction
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Operations and maintenance support

Student social/cultural development
Research
Public service
Student aid grants and stipends
Tuition discounts and allowances
Auxiliary enterprises
Athletics
Other expenditures
Pension Expense
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating (loss) income

$

Stable Isotopes
Corporation

Highlands
Foundation

15,169,085 $
(2,926,051)
12,243,034

- $
-

9,004,963
4,029,682
2,523,441
3,965,280
713,393
32,479,793

-

1,146,022
417,584
1,563,606

18,180,407
2,603,356
3,380,115
6,269,998
4,886,417
35,320,293

-

-

950,999
1,363,314
6,883,101
8,183,084
(2,926,051)
3,548,276
2,558,484
14,670
3,294,361
4,188,758
63,379,289

296,853
296,853

318,317
927,665
57,698
1,303,680

(30,899,496)

(296,853)

259,926

-

See Notes to Financial Statements.

82

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO HIGHLANDS UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
Year Ended June 30, 2015
Primary
Institution
Non operating revenues (expenses)
State appropriations
State land, permanent fund and investment income
Interest and investment income/(loss)
Capital appropriations
Net non-operating revenues

$

Income before other revenues, expenses, gains and losses

31,564,698 $
252,567
538,810
1,067,088
33,423,163
2,523,667

Stable Isotopes
Corporation
- $
(296,853)

Highlands
Foundation
143,357
143,357
403,283

Other - non operating expenses
Additions to permanent endowments
Interest on indebtedness
Total other

2,205,875
2,205,875

(Decrease)/Increase in Net Position
Net Position
Net Position - beginning of year
Restatement
Net Position - beginning of year, as restated
Net Position, end of year

$

-

75,289
75,289

317,792

(296,853)

478,572

67,907,161
(42,947,153)
24,960,008

(1,169,206)
(1,169,206)

10,343,117
10,343,117

25,277,800 $

(1,466,059) $

10,821,689

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO HIGHLANDS UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended June 30, 2015
Primary
Institution
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Tuition and fees
Grants and contracts
Sales and services of educational activities
Other operating receipts
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits
Payments to suppliers
Net cash used by operating activities

$

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
State appropriations
Land and permanent fund
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

12,215,597
15,243,573
3,868,244
713,393
(36,665,366)
(22,360,090)
(26,984,649)

31,564,698
252,567
31,817,265

Cash Flows From Investment Activities
Investment Income
Net cash provided by investment activities

390,796
390,796

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
State Appropriations for Capital
Cash paid for capital assets
Cash paid for renewals and replacements
Repayments of bonds payable
Interest payment on bonds
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

1,067,088
(1,747,210)
(943,617)
(1,038,779)
(1,262,258)
(3,924,776)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

1,298,636

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

7,806,473

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

9,105,109

$

(30,899,496)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating (loss) income
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) income to net cash
used by operating activities
Depreciation expense
Current year deferred pension contributions
Pension expense
Changes in assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows
Receivables
Inventories
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences
Net cash used by operating activities

4,188,758
(2,965,121)
3,294,361
(527,281)
20,822
(302,284)
48,174
88,295
69,122
$

(26,984,650)
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Appendix I
Tuition Comparsion Chart Southwestern Institutions
Public Southwestern Four Year Universities, 2015-2016
Rank
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42

School
NM Highlands University
Fort Hays State University
Langston University
Eastern New Mexico University
Weber State University
Utah Valley State College
Cameron University
Southwestern Oklahoma State University
Northwestern Oklahoma State University
East Central University
University of Texas-Brownsville
Emporia State University
Southeastern Oklahoma State University
University of Central Oklahoma
Southern Utah University
Rogers State University
Western New Mexico University
Metropolitan State College
University of Texas-Permian Basin
Northeastern State University
Pittsburg State University
University of Science & Arts of Oklahoma
NM Institute of Mining and Technology *
University of Houston-Clear Lake
Utah State University *
University of New Mexico *
New Mexico State University *
University of Houston-Downtown
Texas A & M-Texarkana
University of Texas-El Paso *
University of Houston-Victoria
Sul Ross State University
University of Texas-Pan American
University of Texas-Tyler
Oklahoma Panhandle State University
Texas A & M-Commerce
West Texas A & M University
Wichita State University *
Fort Lewis College
Texas A & M-Kingsville
Tarleton State University
Oklahoma State University *

State
NM
KS
OK
NM
UT
UT
OK
OK
OK
OK
TX
KS
OK
OK
UT
OK
NM
CO
TX
OK
KS
OK
NM
TX
UT
NM
NM
TX
TX
TX
TX
TX
TX
TX
OK
TX
TX
KS
CO
TX
TX
OK

In-state Tuition & Fees (Annual)
4,800
4,911
5,043
5,168
5,339
5,386
5,580
5,820
5,821
5,824
5,928
5,936
6,075
6,096
6,300
6,309
6,417
6,420
6,458
6,490
6,508
6,570
6,613
6,639
6,663
6,664
6,729
6,938
7,036
7,059
7,086
7,211
7,292
7,312
7,421
7,432
7,515
7,528
7,601
7,700
7,705
7,778
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Rank
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62T
62T
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80

School
Angelo State University
Washburn University
Texas A & M-International University
Midwestern State University
Colorado Mesa University
University of Northern Colorado *
University of Utah *
Colorado State University-Pueblo
Western State College of Colorado
Texas Woman’s University *
Adams State College
Texas A & M-Corpus Christi
Texas Southern University
University of Texas-San Antonio *
University of Texas-Arlington *
Sam Houston State University
Stephen F. Austin State University
Kansas State University *
Lamar University
University of Colorado-Colorado Springs
Texas A & M-College Station *
Texas Tech University *
Prairie View A & M University
University of Texas-Austin *
Texas State University-San Marcos
Texas A & M-Galveston
University of Oklahoma *
University of North Texas *
Arizona State University-Tempe *
Northern Arizona University
University of Colorado at Denver
Colorado State University-Fort Collins *
University of Houston *
University of Kansas *
University of Colorado-Boulder *
University of Arizona *
University of Texas-Dallas *
Colorado School of Mines *

State
TX
KS
TX
TX
CO
CO
UT
CO
CO
TX
CO
TX
TX
TX
TX
TX
TX
KS
TX
CO
TX
TX
TX
TX
TX
TX
OK
TX
AZ
AZ
CO
CO
TX
KS
CO
AZ
TX
CO

In-state Tuition & Fees (Annual)
7,864
7,910
7,990
8,005
8,008
8,116
8,197
8,281
8,451
8,522
8,574
8,620
8,726
8,737
8,878
9,337
9,342
9,350
9,361
9,428
9,428
9,567
9,745
9,830
9,944
9,988
10,090
10,091
10,184
10,358
10,389
10,558
10,664
10,802
11,091
11,400
11,806
17,353

* doctoral university
Note: Although California schools are not listed, all are over $6,000 for in-state tuition.

Rank

School

State

In‐state Tuition & Fees (Annual)

Source: College Board's 2015-2016 Annual Survey of Colleges. Cited in Chronicle of Higher Education, November 4, 2015
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APPENDIX J
Campus Budget and Planning Committee
Charge, Duties and Responsibilities
The Campus Budget and Planning Committee shall provide advice and input to NMHU’s
executive leadership team on short and long‐term capital budgeting and campus‐wide
improvements.
The Campus Planning Committee's duties and responsibilities shall include:
1. Serve as the primary contributors on updates for capital planning and the campus
master plan;
2. Serve on various qualification‐based Request for Proposals (RFPs) committees for
any professional services contracts regarding any capital outlay projects or major
initiatives;
3. Serve on standing administrative, faculty, staff or student financial committees;
4. Review, recommend, and provide revised policies related to budget and capital
planning as needed;
5. Meetings must be recorded and minutes on action(s) taken must be approved by the
next scheduled meeting and must be published on NMHU’s website; and
6. Members shall be appointed for a 3 year period with staggered terms ‐ no more than
2 new appointments per year with the exception of student membership, which will
be for (1) year only.
Membership
Membership of the committee should be seven to nine (7 to 9). This membership
should consist of a blend of administration, faculty, staff, students, and center
leadership. Membership should be: Two (2) administration – appointed by the
president; Two (2) faculty – selected by faculty senate [(1) from faculty ranks and
(1) from the faculty bargaining unit; Two (2) staff – selected by staff senate and (1)
from staff ranks and (1) from the staff bargaining unit; Two (2) student body
representatives – selected by student senate [(1) undergraduate student and (1)
graduate student]; and One (1) center leadership member – appointed by the
president. The president shall appoint the chair of the committee. Other members
may be appointed by the president for specific initiatives.
Meetings
Chair shall hold at least (1) meeting each quarter and any special meetings as
needed. All meeting minutes and actions taken must be approved by the committee
at the next scheduled meeting and must be published on NMHU’s website.
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